
AGENDA 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 
 

       Henry Fuertes                     Daniel Tunstall 
             P&Z CHAIRPERSON           P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 
 
  
               Elizabeth McLane                  Derrick Reed 
 
 
 
 
 

  
          

Mary Starr                Ginger McFadden 
     

        
 
 
 

Thomas Duncan 
 
 

 
 

January 5, 2015  6:30 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 

 



 
 

 

 MINUTES OF THE 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

January 5, 2015 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, MONDAY, JANUARY 5, 2015, AT 6:00 P.M., 
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS,  CITY HALL,  3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, 
PEARLAND, TEXAS 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. CONSENT AGENDA    
  

All items listed under the “Consent Agenda” are considered to be routine 
and require little or no deliberation by the P&Z Commission. These items 
will be enacted / approved by one motion unless a commissioner requests 
separate action on an item, in which event the item will be removed from 
the Consent Agenda and considered by separate action (ix. Matters 
removed from Consent Agenda). Approval of the Consent Agenda enacts 
the items of legislation. 
 
A. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

AND EXCUSED ABSENCES 
 
1. Approve the Minutes of the December 15, 2014 P&Z Regular Meeting, 

held at 6:00 p.m. 
 
III. NEW BUSINESS  

 
A. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE 

PERMIT APPLICATION NO. 2014-10 
 

A request of Stone Development Group, applicant; on behalf of Baath 
Investments LLC, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to 
allow for an Auto Wash (Full Service/Detail Shop) on approximately 2.33 
acres of land on the following described property: 
 
Legal Description:  Being a 2.3312 acre (101.546 SQ.FT.) tract of land out 
of tract 48 of the Allison-Richey Gulf Coast Home Company subdivision of the 
H.T. & B.R.R. Company survey, section no. 81, abstract no. 200, Brazoria 
county, Texas, according to the plat of said subdivision recorded in volume 2, 
page 98, of the plat records of Brazoria County, Texas, being out a called 
2.615 acre tract save and except 0.2875 acre (12,522 sq. ft.) tract of land 
conveyed to the city of Pearland as described in deed filed under C.F. No. 
2012007393 B.C.D.R.; said 2.3312 acre tract being more particularly 
described by metes and bounds as follows, bearings are based more 
particularly described by metes and bounds as follows, bearings are based on 
the Texas State Plan coordinate system (South Central Zone NAD82);  



 
 

 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

January 5, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 
General Location:  East side of Business Center Drive; west side of State 
Highway 288; and just south of Pearland Town Center, Pearland, TX 
 

B. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE 
APPLICATION NO. 2014-22Z 

 
A request of Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of The Felton M. and Mary C. 
Baker Revocable Trust, owner; for approval of a change in zoning from the 
General Commercial (GC) and Office and Professional (OP) zoning districts, 
to a Planned Development (PD) known as Baker’s Landing; on approximately 
79.94 acres of land, to wit:  
 
Legal Description:  All of that certain 79.94 acres of land, located in the 
A.C.H. & B. Survey, Section 1, A-147 and in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. Survey 11, 
A-239, Brazoria County, Texas, out of the tracts of land described as Lots A, 
B, C, D, E, G, H, I, J, K, L, M, N, O, P, Q, R, S, T, U and V”, and 2.011 acres 
in the deed from Felton M. Baker and  wife, Mary C. Baker to the Felton 
M. and Mary C. Baker Revocable Trust, recorded  under Document Number 
2005011939, of the Official Records of Brazoria County, Texas 
 
General Location:  Between Main Street (SH 35) to the west and Old Alvin 
Road to the east; and south of East Walnut Street, Pearland, TX 

 
C. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE 

APPLICATION NO. 2014-23Z 
 

A request of Windrose Land Services, Inc., applicant; on behalf of T&B 
Alexander Family LTD Partnership, owner; for approval of a change in 
zoning from the Heavy Industrial (M-2) zoning district to the General 
Commercial (GC) zoning district, on approximately 9.9 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Tract 1: Tract or parcel containing 4.2066 acres or 
183,242 square feet of land situated in the A.C.H. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, 
Abstract No. 507, Brazoria County, Texas, being out of a called14.02 acre 
tract of land conveyed to T. & B. Alexander Family, LTD, Partnership as 
recorded under Brazoria County Clerks File No. 98-053938, same being out 
of Lot 19 of the L.W. Murdock Subdivision, map or plat thereof recorded 
under Volume 29, Page 174 of the Brazoria County Deed Records 
 
Tract 2:  A tract or parcel containing 5.7495 acres or 250,450 square feet of 
land situated in the A.C.H. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 507, Brazoria 
County, Texas, being out of a called14.02 acre tract of land conveyed to T. & 
B. Alexander Family, LTD, Partnership as recorded under Brazoria County 



 
 

 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Agenda 

January 5, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Clerks File No. 98-053938, same being out of Lot 19 of the L.W. Murdock 
Subdivision, map or plat thereof recorded under Volume 29, Page 174 of the 
Brazoria County Deed  Records. 
 
General Location:  Northwest and southwest corners of Main Street and 
Bailey Road, Pearland, TX 
 

D. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE TEXT AMENDMENT 

 
A request of the City of Pearland Community Development Department; for 
approval of a Unified Development Code (UDC) amendment to add Micro-
Breweries/ Micro-Distillery/Micro- Winery, and Coffee Roasting, to Section 
2.5.1.1 (c); the land use matrix of the UDC; and to replace Section 4.2.2.5 (g) 
of the UDC to update the plant list. 
 
Legal Description:  N/A 
 
General Location:  N/A 

 
E. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Commissioners Activity Report 
2. Comprehensive Plan Update 
3. Letter from applicant regarding Planning and Zoning Variance 2014-06 and
    staff memo  
4. Next P&Z Meeting, February 2, 2015 – Regular Meeting   

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
I, Jennifer Tatum, Office Assistant of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general public at City Hall 
on the 10th day of December 2014, A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Jennifer Tatum, Office Assistant  
 
 
Agenda removed  __________________  day of January, 2015. 



 
 

II. Consent Agenda Items 
 

All items listed under the “Consent Agenda” are considered to be 

routine and require little or no deliberation by the P&Z Commission. 

These items will be enacted / approved by one motion unless a 

commissioner requests separate action on an item, in which event 

the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 

by separate action (ix. Matters removed from Consent Agenda). 

Approval of the Consent Agenda enacts the items of legislation. 



 

 

 

A. Approval of Minutes 

1. Approve the Minutes of the December 15, 2014 P&Z 
Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 p.m. 
 



 
 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 15, 2014 
Page 1 of 6 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, MONDAY, DECEMBER 15, 
2014, AT 6:00 P.M., HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS,  CITY HALL,  3519 
LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes opened the meeting for the P&Z Regular Meeting at 
6:05 p.m. 
 
In attendance were: 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall 
P&Z Member Elizabeth McLane 
P&Z Member Derrick Reed (arrived at 6:34 p.m.) 
P&Z Member Linda Cowles 
P&Z Member Ginger McFadden 
P&Z Member Thomas Duncan 
 
Also in attendance were City Planner Johnna Matthews, Senior Planner Ian Clowes, 
Deputy City Attorney Nghiem Doan and Office Assistant Jennifer Tatum. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA    
  
P&Z Chairperson Mary Starr made the motion to approve the Consent  Agenda, P&Z 
Commissioner Elizabeth McLane seconded. 
 
The vote was 6 – 0.  The Items on the Consent Agenda were approved. 
 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND 
EXCUSED ABSENCES 

 
Approve the Minutes of the November 17, 2014 P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Approve the Minutes of the December 1, 2014 P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Excuse the Absence of Elizabeth McLane from the December 1, 2014 P&Z Regular 
meeting. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  

 



 
 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 15, 2014 
Page 2 of 6 

 
 

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
APPLICATION NO. 2014-09  

 
A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates, applicant; on behalf of George 
Fishman, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a 
Nursing/Convalescent Home within the Business Park – 288 (BP-288) zoning district, 
on approximately 9.4 acres of land, to wit: 

 
Legal Description:  Being a 9.4083 tract of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company 
Survey, Abstract 300, Brazoria County Texas; said 9.4083 acre tract being all of a 
called 3.39 acre tract of land recorded in the name of George D. and Mary Fishman in 
Clerk’s File Number 2005061002 of the Official Records of Brazoria County (O.R.B.C.) 
Texas, the remainder of a called 3.3 acre tract of land (North 3.3 acres) recorded in the 
name of George D. and Mary Fishman in Clerk’s File Number 97-015077 of the 
O.R.B.C. and the remainder of a called 3.3 acre tract of land (South 3.3 acres) recorded 
in the name of George D. and Mary Fishman in Clerk’s File Number 97-010496 of the 
O.R.B.C. 

 
General Location:  West side of Business Center Drive, south of Pearland Town 
Center, Pearland, TX 
 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr recused herself from the meeting. 
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall made the motion to approve Conditional Use 
Permit Application No. 2014-09. P&Z Commissioner Elizabeth McLane seconded. 
 
City Planner Johnna Matthews read the staff report and stated staff recommended 
approval. Ms. Matthews also stated that this CUP was postponed from the October 20, 
2014 meeting.  
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes inquired whether there were any outstanding items and 
if a dry detention was still being proposed. Ms. Matthews stated there were not any 
outstanding items and that the detention would remain a dry detention. Additionally on 
the east side of the detention area, the applicant proposes an 8 foot masonry wall with 
enhanced landscaping within a 30 foot wide buffer with additional amenities including a 
trail and benches. Ms. Matthews also stated that the applicant reduced the number of 
lots from 4 to 3.  
 
Developer John Griffin stated that this was a skilled nursing facility, not for long term 
care. Mr. Griffin stated the typical stay would be 24 days with in depth rehabilitation. Mr. 
Griffin also stated that this would be a high end facility with 150 staff. 
 
The vote was 5-0. Conditional Use Permit Application 2014-09 was approved. 



 
 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 15, 2014 
Page 3 of 6 

 
 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PLANNING AND ZONING VARIANCE 
2014-05  

 
A request by Luther Daly of Costello, Inc., applicant; on behalf of George and Mary 
Fishman, owner; for approval of a Planning and Zoning Variance to allow for a flag lot 
within the existing Business Park 288 (BP-288) zoning district on 9.4083 acres of land, 
to wit: 

 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 9.4083 acres of land located in the  H.T.& B.R.R. 
Company Survey, Abstract 300, Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location: Located on the west side of Business Center Drive, south of 
Pearland Town Center. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr recused herself from the meeting. 
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall made the motion to approve Planning & Zoning 
Variance No. 2014-05. P&Z Commissioner Elizabeth McLane seconded. 
 
Deputy City Attorney Nghiem Doan stated that this was not a true variance. 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating staff recommended approval. 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes inquired whether or not staff was happy with the 
proposal. Mr. Clowes stated that staff did not have any issues with the proposal.  
 
The vote was 5-0. Planning & Zoning Variance 2014-05 was approved. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – BEAZER CR 48 CLUSTER 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
A request by Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of Joe and Darlene Laney and John 
McMahan, owner; for approval of a Cluster Development Plan, on a 31.127 acre tract of 
land, for a single-family residential subdivision, to wit 

 
Legal Description: The East one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the 
Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 538, 
Brazoria County, Texas and being the same land conveyed to B. Frank Wood by Jay C. 
Tulk by Deed dated April 11, 1955, Recorded in Volume 627, Page 278, Deed Records, 
Brazoria County, Texas and; 

 



 
 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 15, 2014 
Page 4 of 6 

 
 

The West one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the Northeast Quarter (NE 
¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 538, called Tract No. 8, Brazoria 
County, Texas according to the recorded map or plat therof appearing of record in the 
office of the County Clerk of Galveston County, Texas and being the same land 
described from J.T. McMahan to R. D. McMahan, dated October 27, 1964, recorded in 
Volume 895, Page 22, Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas and being that same 
20 acres more or less, conveyed to John T. McMahan by R.D. McMahan and wife, 
Eunice McMahan, by Deed dated December 29, 1994, Filed of Record March 13, 2003, 
recorded under Brazoria County Clerks File No. 03 015336, and; 

 
A 2.72 acre tract, being the remainder of two (2) 1.5 acre tracts, recorded in Volume 
(87) 403, Page 70 [Tract 1] and Volume (87) 403, Page 73 [Tract 2], of the Official 
Records of Brazoria County, Texas, out of the North ½ of the East ½ of the Southeast ¼ 
of the Northeast ¼ of section 84, of the H.T.& B. Railroad Company Survey, Abstract 
538, Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: West of County Road 48 and 2000 feet south of Broadway St., 
Pearland 
 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr made the motion to approve Beazer CR 48 Cluster 
Development Plan. P&Z Commissioner Elizabeth McLane seconded. 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating staff recommended approval 
with the following conditions: 
 

1. Provide a detailed landscape plan with total number of trees, caliper inches for 
each proposed tree, and specific location of plantings. 

2. Provide an elevation profile for the proposed masonry fence to be constructed 
along CR 48. 

 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Henry Fuertes inquired about what was located south of the 
property. Senior Planner Ian Clowes stated it was a drainage ditch. Senior Planner Ian 
Clowes stated that the development would be similar to Southern Trails.  
 
The vote was 6-0. Beazer CR 48 Cluster Development Plan was approved with 
conditions: 
 

1. Provide a detailed landscape plan with total number of trees, caliper inches for 
each proposed tree, and specific location of plantings. 
 

2. Provide an elevation profile for the proposed masonry fence to be constructed    
along CR 48. 

 
 



 
 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 15, 2014 
Page 5 of 6 

 
 

 
 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
Commissioners Activity Report- P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden stated she would 
like to see more pocket parks. Talk ensued about parallel parking making the parks 
more useable. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Update- Senior Planner Ian Clowes stated that the contract 
revision was still being finalized and that Director of Community Development Lata 
Krishnarao was working on a schedule. 
 
Next P&Z Meeting, January 5, 2015 – Regular Meeting- Senior Planner Ian Clowes 
stated that the meeting would be a Joint Public Hearing as well due to January 19, 2015 
being a city holiday and no meeting will take place. 
 
Recessed at 6:38 p.m. 
 
Reconvened at 7:02 p.m.  
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 
2014-21Z 

 
A request of Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of Joe and Darlene Laney and John 
McMahan, owners; for approval of a zoning designation of Single Family - 1 (R-1) on 
approximately 32.3 acres of land, to wit: 

 
Legal Description:  The East one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the 
Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 538, 
Brazoria County, Texas and being the same land conveyed to B. Frank Wood by Jay C. 
Tulk by Deed dated April 11, 1955, Recorded in Volume 627, Page 278, Deed Records, 
Brazoria County, Texas and; 

 
The West one half (1/2) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the Northeast Quarter (NE 
¼) of Section 84, H.T.& B.R.R. Survey, Abstract No. 538, called Tract No. 8, Brazoria 
County, Texas according to the recorded map or plat thereof appearing of record in the 
office of the County Clerk of Galveston County, Texas and being the same land 
described from J.T. McMahan to R. D. McMahan, dated October 27, 1964, recorded in 
Volume 895, Page 22, Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas and being that same 
20 acres more or less, conveyed to John T. McMahan by R.D. McMahan and wife, 
Eunice McMahan, by Deed dated December 29, 1994, Filed of Record March 13, 2003, 
recorded under Brazoria County Clerks File No. 03 015336, and; 

 



 
 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes 

December 15, 2014 
Page 6 of 6 

 
 

A 2.72 acre tract, being the remainder of two (2) 1.5 acre tracts, recorded in Volume 
(87) 403, Page 70 [Tract 1] and Volume (87) 403, Page 73 [Tract 2], of the Official 
Records of Brazoria County, Texas, out of the North ½ of the East ½ of the Southeast ¼ 
of the Northeast ¼ of section 84, of the H.T.& B. Railroad Company Survey, Abstract 
538, Brazoria County, Texas  

 
General Location:  West of County Road 48 and 2000 feet south of Broadway St., 
Pearland, TX 
 
P&Z Commissioner Elizabeth McLane made the motion to approve Zone Change 
Application No. 2014-21Z. P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr seconded. 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report and stated that staff recommended 
approval. Mr. Clowes also stated that 2 letters in opposition were received concerning 
property value and wanting the lot to stay vacant.  
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes inquired if this was a zone change only. Mr. Clowes 
stated yes. Mr. Fuertes inquired if annexation was an ongoing process. City Planner 
Johnna Matthews stated yes and that the final action would take place on January 26, 
2015. 
 
The vote was 7-0. Zone Change Application No. 2014-21Z was approved. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the P&Z Regular meeting at 7:07 p.m. 
 
These minutes were respectfully submitted by: 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Jennifer Tatum, Office Assistant 

 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 5th day of January 2015, A.D. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Henry Fuertes, Chairperson 

 



 

 

 

III. New Business 
 

 



 

 

 

A. Conditional Use Permit 
Application No. 2014-10 
 
A request of Stone Development Group, applicant; 
on behalf of Baath Investments LLC, owner; for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to 
allow for an Auto Wash (Full Service/Detail Shop) 
on approximately 2.33 acres of land. 



 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL CITY AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, JANUARY 5, 2015, AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. 2014-10 
 
A request of Stone Development Group, applicant; on behalf of Baath 
Investments LLC, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow 
for an Auto Wash (Full Service/Detail Shop) on approximately 2.33 acres of land 
on the following described property: 
 
Legal Description:  Being a 2.3312 acre (101.546 SQ.FT.) tract of land out of 
tract 48 of the Allison-Richey Gulf Coast Home Company subdivision of the H.T. 
& B.R.R. Company survey, section no. 81, abstract no. 200, Brazoria county, 
Texas, according to the plat of said subdivision recorded in volume 2, page 98, of 
the plat records of Brazoria County, Texas, being out a called 2.615 acre tract 
save and except 0.2875 acre (12,522 sq. ft.) tract of land conveyed to the city of 
Pearland as described in deed filed under C.F. No. 2012007393 B.C.D.R.; said 
2.3312 acre tract being more particularly described by metes and bounds as 
follows, bearings are based more particularly described by metes and bounds as 
follows, bearings are based on the Texas State Plan coordinate system (South 
Central Zone NAD82);  
 
General Location:  East side of Business Center Drive; west side of State 
Highway 288; and just south of Pearland Town Center 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 
A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 

Page 1 of 2 – 1/5/2015 
 



VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 

 



 

 

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  December 22, 2014 
 
Re: Conditional Use Permit Application No. 2014-10 

A request of Stone Development Group, applicant; on behalf of 
Baath Investments LLC, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP) to allow for an Auto Wash (Full Service/Detail 
Shop) within the Business Park  288 (BP-288) zoning district, on 
approximately 2.33 acres of land. 

Proposal 

The subject property includes approximately 2.33 acres, of which the applicant is 
requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for an Auto Wash (Full 
Service/Detail Shop).  According to the applicant’s letter of intent, the facility, iShine 
Auto Wash Express & Detail, will include a 7,220 square foot building, which will 
incorporate several environmentally conscious, resource saving ideas. The car wash 
will provide employees on the premise to ensure that the wash tunnel runs at top 
efficiency and to ensure expectations of the “customer’s experience” are met with every 
wash. There will be vacuum towers on site for customers to vacuum their vehicles.  

Public Notification/Comment 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, owner of 
the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the site.  Additionally, a legal 
notice of public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign 
was placed on the property by the applicant. 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any returned notices from property 
owners within 200 feet of the site in favor or in opposition to the request. 

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of CUP 2014-10 to allow for an Auto Wash (Full 
Service/Detail Shop) on the approximately 2.33 acre site, following the reasons: 

 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

1. The property is located within the Business Park-288 (BP-288) zoning district.  
An “Auto Wash/Full Service Detail” shop is permitted, with approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit. 

2. The proposed Auto Wash (Self Service) will not significantly impact surrounding 
properties or developments. 
   

3. With approval of the Conditional Use Permit, the proposed Auto Wash will 
comply with the Business Park future land use designation of the Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 

4. The proposed development will require platting of the site.  Platting will ensure 
that infrastructure is adequate to serve the proposed development and that 
access complies with the City’s Engineering Design Criteria Manual.   
 

Conditions of Approval 

1. Fifty percent (50) of the trees required along State Highway 288 must be located 
along the frontage/yard adjacent to State Highway 288.  It does not appear that 
this requirement is shown on the site plan. 

2. Development of the site must conform to all requirements of the BP-288 zoning 
district. 

 

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report 

2. Aerial Map 

3. Zoning Map 

4. Future Land Use Map 

5. Notification Map 

6. Notification List 

7. Site Plan 

8. Applicant Packet 

2 | P a g e  

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of Request 

The subject property includes approximately 2.3 acres, of which the applicant is 
requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for an Auto Wash (Full 
Service/Detail Shop).  According to the applicant’s letter of intent, the facility, iShine 
Auto Wash Express & Detail, will include a 7,220 square foot building, which will 
incorporate several environmentally conscious, resource saving ideas including 
rainwater reclamation system, fiberglass reinforced concrete to cut down on steel 
production, energy saving designs throughout the facility to cut down on energy usage 
and lighting costs, upgraded fixtures to cut down on wasteful energy usage, recycling, 
and solar panel installation. iShine Auto Wash Express and Detail will implement the 
most up-to-date tunnel wash technology available. The car wash will provide employees 
on the premise to ensure that the wash tunnel runs at top efficiency and to ensure 
expectations of the “customer’s experience” are met with every wash. There will also be 
vacuum towers on site for customers to vacuum their vehicles.  

Site History 

The subject property is currently undeveloped. The property was annexed into the City 
of Pearland in 1996.  Prior to the adoption of the Unified Development Code in 2006, 
the property was dually zoned Suburban Development Residential District (SD) and 
Low Density Single Family (R-1).  In 2006 the Business Park-288 zoning district was 
created and applied to the subject property. 

With the exception of the undeveloped BP-288 parcel to the west, cited to be developed 
with a Convalescent/Nursing Home, the site is surrounded by undeveloped properties 
located within non-residential zoning districts and/or non-residential/ mixed use Planned 
Developments (PDs).  Directly north and south of the site are undeveloped tracts 
located within the Business Park 288 (BP-288) zoning district.  Further north is the 
Pearland Town Center PD; a mixed use PD.  Further south of the site is properties 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

located within the Business Center Drive PD; a non-residential PD.  Directly east of the 
site is State Highway 288. 

The below table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts: 

 Zoning Land Use 
North Business Park 288 (BP-288) Undeveloped  
South Business Park 288 (BP-288) Undeveloped 
East State Highway 288 State Highway 288 
West Business Park 288 (BP-288) Undeveloped, Future 

Development of a 
Nursing/Convalescent Home 

 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The property is located within the Business Park – 288 (BP-288) zoning district, which is 
intended to permit large office complexes/campuses and retail development in locations 
with good visibility and roadway access. The BP-288 zoning district also permits uses 
(such as the proposed Auto Wash - Full Service/Detail Shop) with approval of a CUP, 
which may be suitable in certain locations and/or with certain conditions.  

The site plan submitted for consideration depicts a single lot on 2.33 acres, associated 
parking spaces and landscaping with approximately 10,000 square feet proposed for 
detention.  The detention area includes a number of trees on the west and east sides of 
the detention area.  The Auto Wash will meet the requirements of the BP-288 zoning 
district as it relates to the area regulations.   

The required and proposed lot area are listed below: 

 BP-288 
Requirement 

Subject Property 

Minimum Lot Size 43,560 sf. (1 acre) 2.33 Acres 

Minimum Lot Width 150 ft. 247 ft. 3 in. 

Minimum Lot Depth 200 ft. 410 ft. 9 in. 

 

The applicant proposes 10,000 square feet of on-site detention located on the eastern 
boundary of the site as required by the UDC and the Engineering Design Criteria 
Manual.  The BP-288 zoning district requires detention facilities to be incorporated as 
an amenity, such as a lake or pond.  Other amenities for detention facilities include 

2 | P a g e  

 



 

aesthetic or other characteristics that increase its visual desirability, including 
recreational facilities, landscaping or large trees.   

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

The subject property is located within the Business Park Future Land Use designation.  
According to the Comprehensive Plan, the area is generally encompassing of the SH 
288 corridor and portions of Beltway 8 nearest SH 288.  The Comprehensive Plan 
indicates a mixed use area developed in coordinated, master-planned campus-like 
settings with interdependent and complimentary uses.  Preferred uses include office 
buildings of various heights, regional shopping centers and malls, research and 
development facilities and light manufacturing.  With approval of the CUP, the proposed 
development will be in compliance with, and meets the intent of the Business Park 
Future Land Use designation; and will continue to provide for a mix of uses that are 
planned or developed for the area.  The location of the property lends itself for a mix of 
non-residential uses, as indicated by the Comprehensive Plan. 

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The property has frontage on Business Center Drive; a secondary thoroughfare of 
sufficient width, which requires 100 feet of right-of-way.  

Platting Status 

The subject property is not platted.  Platting will be required prior to development and 
the issuance of building permits.  The site plan illustrates a curb cut and access from 
the property to the north.  Ingress, egress and connectivity will be analyzed at the time 
of platting in accordance with the City’s Engineering Design Criteria Manual. 

Availability of Utilities 

The subject property has access to public infrastructure. According to Public Works, 
there is an existing 12 inch water line along the west side of Business Center Drive.  
Additionally, there is an existing 8 inch sanitary sewer line along the east side of 
Business Center Drive. The developer will be responsible for extending services to the 
site, if deemed necessary, and will be determined at the time of platting.  

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

The subject property is surrounded by commercial uses and/or zoning districts on three 
sides, most of which has yet to be developed; however, some developments are 
planned within the area, including various non-residential uses located within the 
Business Park PD, just west of the subject property, including a Nursing/Convalescent 
Home.  State Highway 288 is located to the east of the property, which will be separated 
via a 64-foot wide detention pond, which will provide a sufficient buffer between the 

3 | P a g e  

 



 

thoroughfare and the rear of the Auto wash.  Therefore, there should be no adverse 
impacts.   

Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the City’s Development Review Committee (DRC), 
and there were no additional comments from other departments at the time of this 
report. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the CUP.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any comments either in opposition to 
or in support of the proposed CUP to allow an Auto Wash (Full Service/Detail Shop).   

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the CUP 2014-10 to allow for an Auto Wash (Full 
Service/Detail Shop) on the approximately 2.33 acre site, following reasons: 

1. The property is located within the Business Park-288 (BP-288) zoning district.  
An “Auto Wash/Full Service Detail” shop is permitted, with approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit. 

2. The proposed Auto Wash (Self Service) will not significantly impact surrounding 
properties or developments. 
   

3. With approval of the Conditional Use Permit, the proposed Auto Wash will 
comply with the Business Park future land use designation of the Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 

4. The proposed development will require platting of the site.  Platting will ensure 
that infrastructure is adequate to serve the proposed development and that 
access complies with the City’s Engineering Design Criteria Manual.   

 
 

 

 

4 | P a g e  

 



 

Conditions of Approval 

1. Fifty percent (50) of the trees required along State Highway 288 must be located 
along the frontage/yard adjacent to State Highway 288.  It does not appear that 
this requirement is shown on the site plan. 

2. Development of the site must conform to all requirements of the BP-288 zoning 
district. 

 

 

 

5 | P a g e  

 



Brazoria

SH 288 S

SH 288 N

BUSINESS CENTER DR

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
S SH 288 FNTG N

SH
 28

8 R
AM

P

2902

ISHINE AUTO WASH

AERIAL MAP
CUP 2014-10

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 250 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



PUD

R-2

BP-288

SD

Brazoria

SH 288 S

SH 288 N

BUSINESS CENTER DR

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
S SH 288 FNTG N

SH
 28

8 R
AM

P
2902

17667

11101

3409

3513

11202

11201

11101

11201

11202

3501

11102

11103

3507

3509

3511

3505

3403

3407

3405

11101

3503

3401

11102

11201

11102

11103

11204

11203
11204

3510

11203

3508

3506

ISHINE AUTO WASH

ZONING MAP
CUP 2014-10

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 333 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



Business ParkBrazoria

SH 288 S

SH 288 N

BUSINESS CENTER DR

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
S SH 288 FNTG N

SH
 28

8 R
AM

P
2902

17667

ISHINE AUTO WASH

FLUP MAP
CUP 2014-10

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 250 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



Brazoria

SH 288 S

SH 288 N

BUSINESS CENTER DR

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
S SH 288 FNTG N

SH
 28

8 R
AM

P

2902

ISHINE AUTO WASH

NOTIFICATION
MAP
CUP 2014-10

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 250 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



CUP 2014-10
NOTIFICATION LIST

PROPERTY OWNER ADDRESS SUITE
YLT 288 Partners 5855 Sovereign Dr. STE. B
Stone Development Group 1066 Marty Dr.
Virani Ahmadali 2814 Acorn Wood Wy.
Fishman George & Mary 3406 Hampshire St.
Parkside 59/288 LTD % Joe Moody- Parkside Capital Investments 3003 W Alabama St.
Gold Star Development % William Yeh 6229 Richmond Ave.



CITY STATE ZIP
Houston TX 77036-2337
Hudson WI 54016
Houston TX 77059-5808
Pearland TX 77581-4829
Houston TX 77098-2001
Houston TX 77057-6211















































 

 

 

B. Zone Change Application  

No. 2014-22Z 
 
A request of Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of 
The Felton M. and Mary C. Baker Revocable 
Trust, owner; for approval of a change in zoning 
from the General Commercial (GC) and Office and 
Professional (OP) zoning districts, to a Planned 
Development (PD) known as Baker’s Landing; on 
approximately 79.94 acres of land. 



 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL CITY AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, JANUARY 5, 2015 AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Zone Change Application No. 2014-22Z 
 
A request of Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of The Felton M. and Mary C. 
Baker Revocable Trust, owner; for approval of a change in zoning from the 
General Commercial (GC) and Office and Professional (OP) zoning districts, to a 
Planned Development (PD) known as Baker’s Landing; on approximately 79.94 
acres of land, to wit:  
 
Legal Description:  All of that certain 79.94 acres of land, located in the A.C.H. 
& B. Survey, Section 1, A-147 and in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. Survey 11, A-239, 
Brazoria County, Texas, out of the tracts of land described as Lots A, B, C, D, E, 
G, H, I, J, K, L, M, N, O, P, Q, R, S, T, U and V”, and 2.011 acres in the deed 
from Felton M. Baker and  wife, Mary C. Baker to the Felton M. and Mary C. 
Baker Revocable Trust, recorded  under Document Number 2005011939, of the 
Official Records of Brazoria County, Texas 
 
General Location:  Between Main Street (SH 35) to the west and Old Alvin 
Road to the east; and south of East Walnut Street, Pearland, TX 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 
A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 

Page 1 of 2 – 1/5/2015    
 



Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 

 



 

 

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  December 30, 2014 
 
Re: Zone Change Application Number 2014-22Z 

 A request of Alan Mueller, applicant; on behalf of The Felton M. 
and Mary C. Baker Revocable Trust, owner; for approval of a 
change in zoning from the General Commercial (GC) and 
Office and Professional (OP) zoning districts, to a Planned 
Development (PD) known as Baker’s Landing; on 
approximately 79.94 acres of land. 

Proposal 

The applicant proposes to change the zoning of approximately 79.94 acres located between 
Main Street (SH 35) to the west, Old Alvin Road to the east, and south of East Walnut Street; 
from General Commercial (GC) and Office & Professional to a Planned Development (PD), 
known as Baker’s Landing.  

As proposed by the developer, Baker’s Landing will consist of approximately 250 single family 
homes on approximately 59.2 acres, with an overlay zoning district of Single Family Residential 
4 (R-4); and a 1-acre tract with frontage along Walnut Street, with an overlay zoning district of 
General Business (GB) for a non-residential use.  The lots proposed are 55 foot wide, with an 
area of 6,875 square feet, exceptions being those that are located on the cul-de-sac.  

Based on the information provided at the workshop, DR Horton will be the developer of this 
project. 

Recommendation 

Staff is unable to recommend approval of the proposed Planned Development known as 
Baker’s Landing, for the following reasons: 

1. The development, as proposed does not meet the Village District future land use 
designation of the Comprehensive Plan or the recommendations of the Old Townsite 
Plan (OTS) Plan, adopted by the City Council. 

2. Insufficient documentation to ensure product diversity and amenities that translate to 
project value. Repetitive product that is substantially similar to preponderance of existing 
residential (e.g. 55 foot lots).  

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

3. As proposed, Baker’s Landing PD does not meet the intent of a PD (Section 2.2.2.1 of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), which is to result in a higher quality development 
for the community than would result from the use of conventional zoning.  

4. The PD as proposed, does not contain details on amenities and landscaping. 

Should Baker’s Landing Planned Development move forward, Staff recommends the 
following conditions:  

1. In keeping with the intent of the  “Village District” future land use designation and the close 
proximity to the Old Town area, 

• Provide some mixture of housing sizes and styles by including larger lot 
sizes and diverse housing types such as townhomes with quality 
architecture and urban design. More specific detail is needed in the PD 
on the architecture and design of the development to safeguard that the 
intended home standards are constructed.   

• Pedestrian connectivity (sidewalks) shall meet the requirements of the 
UDC, which requires 6-foot wide sidewalks on all collectors and 4-foot 
sidewalks on local streets.  

• Increase pedestrian access to the Old Town area (Grand Avenue) to 
meet the intent of the “Village District” that encourages enhanced 
walkability.  

• Further explore with the City the extension of Grand Avenue.  
 

2. Provide detail on the buffer along SH 35 including detail on the masonry wall, landscaping, 
plantings and berming.  Provide enhanced landscaping and consider wider buffer than the 
minimum requirements. Extend the masonry screening wall along the full length of areas 
visible on Main Street, as required by the UDC for all single family perimeter fences 
abutting Major Thoroughfares.  

3. Include a masonry screening wall along Old Alvin Road, as opposed to a wood fence. 
Perimeter subdivision fences along Major Thoroughfares are required to be constructed of 
masonry materials; and wood is expressly prohibited. Although Old Alvin Road is not a 
Major Thoroughfare, for consistency and sustainability, staff recommends masonry for the 
construction of the screening wall along Old Alvin Road.  Also, show masonry fencing 
where residential uses will abut existing non-residential uses and zones, as required by 
the code. 

4. Include minimum percentages for brick and masonry - minimum 30% brick and 30% stone 
for front facades and 20% brick or stone for side and rear facades, to prevent 100% stucco 
along the front façade and 50% stucco along the side facades of the residential homes. 

5. As proposed 20% of the land area (16.6 acres) is dedicated to usable open space, as 
required for a residential PD (Section 2.2.2.3 (c) of the UDC), and as recommended by the 
Comprehensive Plan. Open space for PD districts may be satisfied by either public or by a 
combination of public and private open space requirements, and is in in addition to 
landscaping and buffering. Details are required regarding the proposed private parks, 

2 | P a g e  

 



 

landscaping and fencing, and should be added to the text of the PD document. The center 
area of the project is of concern; due to lack of any open space. Adding some linear open 
areas to provide north-south greenway access to the recreational areas in the south would 
help in lowering density, as providing more meaningful open spaces, and better access to 
recreational areas from all parts of the development. Details are required regarding the 
proposed curb extensions and cross walks on Hampshire Street, and should be added to 
the text of the PD document.  

Current Zoning and Comprehensive Plan Recommendations 

The subject property is currently zoned as General Commercial (GC) and Office and 
Professional (OP), and single family developments are not permitted in these zoning districts.  

In this area, the 1999 Comprehensive Plan (updated in 2010) envisions a development that 
provides an opportunity to create a “unique community that contrasts with and provides an 
alternative to standard land development patterns seen elsewhere in the City.” The 
recommendations include mixing of uses in a single building, with ground floor business and 
second floor residential, enhanced walkability within the area and connectivity to the 
surroundings, mixed use and diversity, mixed housing types, connectivity, quality architecture 
and urban design, traditional neighborhood structure, and centralized public space.  

This area was also identified as being part of the Old Townsite Downtown Development 
District in October of 2004 and was called the New Town Center area (see below).  The vision 
for this area reiterated the 1999 Comprehensive Plan recommendations. The Old Townsite 
Downtown Development District Plan (OTS Plan) recognized that this area was an integral part 
of the Old Townsite, and recommended a traditional mixed-use walkable center, well connected 
to Grand Avenue, by providing a focal point on this site, in the form of an urban square. The 
OTS Plan also emphasized connection to the residential subdivision to the east by extension of 
Churchill, Windsor, and Westminster Streets into this area. Specifically, for the residential 
component, the recommendations included a variety of housing types including townhomes, 
condominiums, loft residential, with parking in the rear, and corner store commercial. 

3 | P a g e  

 



 

Recommendation of the Old Townsite Downtown Development District Plan  
 
Joint Workshop 

A joint workshop was held before the City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission on 
November 17, 2014. The following concerns were expressed by the City Council and the 
Planning and Zoning Commission; and how the applicant addressed the concerns follows in red 
font followed by staff comments and concerns: 

1. Concern with the features of homes and the neighborhood amenities (such factors 
that translate to home values, stated by applicant to be targeted $250,000 – 
$300,000); moreover, for the property to be predominantly residential along 
SH35, the uniform lot frontages of 50-foot to 55-foot lots, as proposed by the 
applicant brought questions of the additional residential of this same type into the 
community in lieu of the zoned business and office uses. 

 
DR Horton originally proposed minimum 50 and 55-foot lot widths. The lot width 
proposed at this time is a minimum 55-feet. The homes will be constructed of 
100% masonry along the front façade and 50% masonry along the side facades.  

 
Based upon the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan, the OTS Plan 
mentioned above, and Council and P & Z comments, staff recommends diversity 

4 | P a g e  

 



 

in housing, including townhomes; and 65-foot and 75-foot lots (R-2 and R-3 
zoning) . Despite the assertion made by the developer above, the proposal still 
includes all 55 foot lots with no other width.  The masonry requirement proposed 
is the minimum that is provided in the current housing market.  Staff has 
requested more architectural details and prototypes to demonstrate the quality of 
the homes that are being proposed. 

The definition of masonry in the city codes includes stucco, stone, and brick, with 
no minimum requirements for each specific material. As the applicant is 
requesting a Planned Development and different uses than currently zoned, if the 
residential project proceeds, staff recommends that a minimum 30% brick and 
30% stone for front facades and 20% brick or stone for side and rear facades be 
added to prevent 100% stucco along the front façade and 50% stucco along the 
side facades of the residential homes.  

Some examples of recent newer developments in Pearland are shown here, that 
have a combination of brick and masonry.  This requirement, in addition to 
adding larger lots as mentioned above and adding a minimum square footage for 
homes, would assist in meeting the mix of housing that the City Council and 
Planning and Zoning Commission suggested.  

 

  
 

5 | P a g e  

 



 

  

  
Examples of Residential Structures in Pearland - Facades with a Combination of 
Brick, Stone, and Stucco. 

  
2. Concerns were raised regarding homes abutting SH 35 and a desire for wider open 

space along SH 35. 
 

 No changes have been proposed by DR Horton to address this concern.  
  

Staff has requested details on the buffer area to determine the type of fence and 
amount of landscaping proposed. SH 35 (Main Street) is located within the 
Corridor Overlay District (COD), and requires a minimum 30-foot wide, 
unobstructed buffer. It is important to note that this buffer was envisioned for front 
yards of commercial uses along SH 35, for aesthetic purposes. The buffer 
does not address adjacency issues between single family homes on small 
lots (R-4) with rear yards abutting a Major Thoroughfare that is also a State 
Highway with truck traffic. In light of the fact that SH 35 will be widened in the 
future, and residential homes will abut a Major Thoroughfare with truck traffic 
servicing the adjoining industrial areas on SH 35, strong consideration should be 
given to the buffer between the residences and SH 35, in terms of width and 
enhanced landscaping.   
 
The existing right-of-way in this location is 100 feet.  The Throughfare Plan 
requires a 120 foot right-of-way for a Major Thoroughfare.  However, the future 
right-of-way required for SH35 may encroach into the proposed 30-foot buffer 

6 | P a g e  

 



 

area if TxDOT determines they need more right-of-way on the east due to design 
issues or that the west side will require structure buy-outs. 
 
It should also be noted that the property is being requested for residential uses 
not envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan for land uses in this area. That long-
term plan has non-residential office and retail uses.  This is not to say that 
residential of any sort is not appropriate or cannot be a mix of the eventual land 
uses on the property.  However, the City’s own 20/20 economic development 
plan, Pearland 20/20:  A Blueprint for Pearland, Texas Competitive Assessment 
(December 11, 2012) summarizes in a conclusion that “Diverse, high-value 
commercial and industrial development must continue to be enhanced, especially 
along the major corridors, to balance the city’s tax digest.”  The City of Pearland 
has 70% of its net assessed value in residential, according to the recently adopted 
Budget document.   
 

  
3. Will sound walls be provided between SH 35 and abutting residential? 

 No changes have been proposed by DR Horton to address this concern. 
  

 As stated above, staff has requested more details on the buffer between the 
proposed homes and SH 35, which has considerable truck traffic.  Sound walls 
may be a possibility if housing on small lots is built at the proposed location when 
SH 35 is widened in the future, similar to the reconstructed section north of 
Broadway Street, but that would be after-the-fact and at an added public expense 
for the road project. 

 
4. The lack of business uses was questioned, especially along SH35. 

 No changes have been proposed by DR Horton to address this concern. 
 

The proposed GB tract remains as 1 acre, with the possibility to convert the 1-acre 
GB tract into single family lots. The proposal presented at the workshop had a 
maximum of 280 single family lots (3.48 dwelling units per acre). The applicant 
has somewhat decreased the maximum number of single family lots to 265 lots 
(3.3 dwelling units per acre). Staff recommends a mix of residential types and if 
feasible, non-residential uses. 

 
5. Would the applicant consider Townhomes for variety? 

 No changes have been proposed by DR Horton to address this concern.  

7 | P a g e  

 



 

  
Townhomes are not proposed for this development. When development was 
originally discussed with staff, DR Horton was proposing townhomes in the land 
area abutting SH 35.  Staff recommends that townhomes and similar diverse 
housing be considered.  Diverse uses along SH 35 would be in compliance with 
the OTS Plan.  
 

6 Concerns were raised regarding increased traffic on Galveston Street (Minor 
Collector) and on SH 35 (Major Thoroughfare), and internal streets being used as 
a cut through.   
No changes have been proposed by DR Horton to address this concern. 
 
Staff recommends that details are provided to address this issue. The applicant 
has indicated that traffic calming measures would be provided, but has not 
provided enough written assurances, graphic details, or alternatives on how 
these measures would be implemented by the builder. 

 
7.  Requested the applicant to consider zoning other than R-4, and to lower the 

density. 
 Remains R-4 zoning.  

 
The proposed overlay zoning district for the single family homes remains as R-4. 
The center area of the project is of concern; due to lack of any open space. 
Adding linear open areas to provide north-south greenway access to the 
recreational areas on the south would help in lowering density, by providing more 
meaningful open spaces, and better access to recreational areas from all parts of 
the development.  

 
8. Concerns were raised regarding access to open space being provided across 

heavily travelled streets, which would be a deterrent to open space usage. 
 A 6-foot trail has been added to the wooded area as well as a bench. Pedestrian 

access is provided throughout the site via the 6-foot trail, mostly along the 
perimeter of streets, with 4-foot sidewalks along internal streets. See Exhibit 6 of 
the PD document. 
 

 Since the proposed open space is not centrally located for easy pedestrian 
access, staff recommends linear open space areas to provide north-south 
greenway access to the recreational areas in the south, as mentioned above.  

 
Public Notification/Comment 

Staff sent 63 public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner of the 
property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration for 
the proposed PD, known as Baker’s Landing. As required by state law, a legal notice of the 
public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the 
property by the applicant.  

8 | P a g e  

 



 

As of the date of this writing, staff has received 2 notices in opposition to the request.  However, 
the returned notices are not from property owners within 200 feet of the site.  

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report 

2. Aerial Map 

3. Existing Zoning Map 

4. Proposed Zoning Map (From PD Document) 

5. Future Land Use Map 

6. Notification Map 

7. Notification List 

8. Baker’s Landing Planned Development 

9 | P a g e  

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of Request 

The applicant proposes to change the zoning of approximately 79.94 acres located between 
Main Street (SH 35) to the west, Old Alvin Road to the east, and south of East Walnut Street; 
from General Commercial (GC) and Office & Professional to a Planned Development (PD), 
known as Baker’s Landing.  Baker’s Landing will consist of approximately 250 single family 
homes on approximately 59.2 acres, with an overlay zoning district of Single Family Residential 
4 (R-4); and a 1-acre tract with frontage along Walnut Street, with an overlay zoning district of 
General Business (GB), for a non-residential use.  As written into the PD, the proposed 1-acre 
GB-tract may be converted to single family homes, provided the total number of lots does not 
exceed 265 lots, which equates to a gross density of 3.3 dwelling units per acre.  The R-4 
zoning district allows for a maximum gross density of 5.6 dwelling units per acre.  Proposed lot 
sizes include lot size of 55 feet x 125 feet (6,875 square feet).   

The remaining acreage will be designated for open space, including a detention area to be used 
as an amenity with a pavilion and 4 fountains, 6-foot wide trails around the perimeter of the 
detention area, which will provide pedestrian access to the proposed wooded area located at 
the southeast corner of the development along Old Alvin Road, and throughout the 
development; 4-foot sidewalks internal to the development; 5 pocket parks/tot lots (16.6 acres) 
and landscape reserves (3.6 acres).   

Under the developer’s proposal, Baker’s Landing will be developed in 2 phases, with the option 
to modify the number of phases and boundaries of each phase.  However, the detention area 
and the 9.6-acre park will be constructed in Phase 1.  According to Exhibit 5 (Phasing Plan), 
Phase 1 will include 121 lots; and Phase 2 will include 129 lots, in addition to the 1- acre GB 
tract, which may be converted into single family lots. 

Site History 

The subject property was annexed into the City of Pearland in 1949.  The site was originally 
known as the Pearland Municipal Airport, and consisted of 4 runways serving local general 
aviation needs, and was home to a flight school and several crop dusting operations. The 
property is currently developed with buildings from its prior use for aviation purposes and a 
detention pond in the south central portion of the property.  The southeast portion of the 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

property is heavily wooded with a small portion within the 100 year floodplain.  Just south of the 
subject property is Mary’s Creek.   

The subject property is surrounded by a mix of various land uses as well as zoning districts, as 
illustrated by the below table: 

 Zoning Land Use 

North 
Old Town Mixed Use (OT-MU) 
General Commercial (GC) 
Office & Professional 

Single Family 
Post Office 
Industrial Warehouse Structures 

South General Commercial (GC) 
Mary’s Creek 
Industrial Warehouse Structures 
Offices 

East 
General Commercial (GC) 
Office & Professional (OP) 
Multi-Family (MF) 
Single Family Residential 1 (R-1) 

Nursing/Convalescent Home 
Multi-Family 
Single Family 

West 
General Business (GB) 
Light Industrial (M-1) 
 

Auto Zone 
Bails Bonds 
Industrial Warehouse Structures 

 

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The subject property is bounded by Main Street to the west, a Major Thoroughfare which 
requires 120 feet of right-of-way (ROW); Old Alvin Road to the east, a Minor Collector, which 
requires 60 feet of ROW, and requires widening in certain areas along the roadway; E. Walnut 
Street to the north, a Major Collector which requires 80 feet of ROW, and requires widening.  
Galveston Avenue, a Major Collector of sufficient width runs north and south through the 
property; Hampshire Street; a Major Collector of sufficient width runs east and west through the 
property.  Finally, the property has frontage on Beechcraft and Lockheed Streets, both Local 
Streets, of which require 50 feet of ROW.  Through the platting process, the applicant proposes 
to abandon a 350-foot section of Beechcraft Street.  As the property has frontage on multiple 
streets with multiple designations, additional right-of-way may be required and will be assessed 
during the platting process.   
  
Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

Although the existing zoning of the site is General Commercial (GC) and Office and 
Professional (OP), and single family developments are not permitted, a Planned Development 
allows for deviations from various requirements of zoning districts, including the establishment 
of an overlay zoning district, which may combine the regulations of one or more zoning districts.  
The applicant proposes Single Family Residential-4 (R-4) for the residential component, and 
General Business (GB), for the 1-acre non-residential tract, with the option to convert the GB 
tract to single family homes.  The below table illustrates the R-4 requirements that are proposed 
to be varied through the PD process.  All other standards will meet the requirements of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC), including the Corridor Overlay District standards, where 

2 | P a g e  

 



 

applicable, along Main Street.  There are no changes proposed for the 1-acre GB tract, if 
developed with a non-residential use.   
 
Specifically, Collector Streets require 6-foot sidewalks; and local streets require 4-foot 
sidewalks.  The applicant proposes 4-foot sidewalks along the east side of Galveston Avenue.  
 

 R-4 Standard Proposed R-4 PD Standard 

Sidewalks along Galveston Ave. 6 feet 4 feet where residential lots front 
on Galveston Ave. 

 

By the developer receiving additional uses or other allowances outside of the zoning, 
Planned Developments are a development option intended to result in a higher quality 
development for the community than would result from the use of conventional zoning 
districts.  The applicant proposes a number of amenities, which would not be required in the R-
4 zoning district including subdivision identification signs at the Old Alvin Road and Hampshire 
Street entrance, the Hampshire Street and Main Street entrance, and the Galveston Avenue 
and Walnut Street entrance; masonry fencing at the Hampshire Street and Old Alvin Road 
entrance; Hampshire Street curb extensions and cross walks; 20% open space in the form of 
private parks and tot lots, including preservation of a heavily wooded area at the southeast 
corner of the development, an amenitized detention area, with approximately 2.2 miles of 6-foot 
wide trails, 10 benches, a pier and a pavilion/shade structure; masonry requirements for the 
homes including 100% masonry along the front elevation and 50% masonry along the side 
elevations; and a historical marker regarding the history of the property to be located at the 
pocket park.   

Table 7, found on page 7 of the PD document includes a table “Design Enhancements, 
Amenities and Recreational Facilities,” which also includes the general location of the proposed 
enhancement, amenity or recreational facility.  Staff has included a 3rd column indicating if the 
item would be required within the R-4 zoning district or as part of a single family residential PD: 

Item General Location Required by the UDC (Yes 
or No) 

6-foot in height upgraded wood 
fence 

Old Alvin Rd. and portions of 
Hampshire Street and Galveston 
Street 

No.   

However wood is discouraged, 
and is expressly prohibited along 
Major and Secondary 
Thoroughfares. 

6 foot in height brick masonry 
fence 

Hampshire Street/Old Alvin Road 
entry No. 

Primary Entry Monument Old Alvin Road and Hampshire 
Street 

No. 

Secondary Entry Monument Hampshire Street at Old Alvin 
Road No. 

3 | P a g e  

 



 

Item General Location Required by the UDC (Yes 
or No) 

Monument Sign Galveston Street at Walnut 
Street No. 

12-acre park including a 7.0 acre 
amenitized detention lake with 
fountains 

Hampshire Street Park 

Yes. 

A PD requires a minimum of 20% 
usable open space, which can be 
satisfied by either a combination 
of public/private open space, and 
this is in addition to landscaping 
and buffering.   

3.8 acres preserved wooded 
open space with trails and 
benches 

Southeast corner 

Yes. 

A PD requires a minimum of 20% 
usable open space, which can be 
satisfied by either a combination 
of public/private open space, and 
this is in addition to landscaping 
and buffering. 

4 pocket parks totaling .78 acres Throughout 

Yes. 

A PD requires a minimum 20% 
usable open space, which can be 
satisfied by either a combination 
of public/private open space, and 
this is in addition to landscape 
and buffering.  

Approximately 2.2 miles of 6-foot 
trail Throughout 

Yes. 

A PD requires a minimum 20% 
open space, which can be 
satisfied by either a combination 
of public/ private open space, 
and this is in addition to 
landscape and buffering. 

 3.6 acres landscape/open 
reserves Throughout 

Yes. 

A PD requires a minimum 20% 
usable open space, which can be 
satisfied by either a combination 
of public/private open space, and 
this is in addition to landscape 
and buffering.  

Pier Hampshire Street Park 

No.  

However, can be considered an 
amenity as part of a PD. 

4 | P a g e  

 



 

Item General Location Required by the UDC (Yes 
or No) 

Pavillion/Shade Structure Hampshire Street Park 

No.  

However, can be considered an 
amenity as part of a PD. 

Playground Hampshire Street Park 

Yes. 

A PD requires a minimum 20% 
usable open space, which can be 
satisfied by either a combination 
of public/private open space, and 
this is in addition to landscape 
and buffering. 

Picnic Tables Hampshire Street Park 

No.  

However, can be considered an 
amenity as part of a PD. 

“Tot Lot” playground Pocket Park 

Yes. 

A PD requires a minimum 20% 
usable open space, which can be 
satisfied by either a combination 
of public/private open space, and 
this is in addition to landscape 
and buffering. 

10 benches Parks and along Trail 

No.  

However, can be considered an 
amenity as part of a PD. 

Hampshire Street curb 
extensions and striped cross 
walks 

Hampshire Street Park (2 
locations) No. 

Extra depth lots (125 feet vs. 90 
feet) Throughout 

No. 

Lot depths are minimums. The R-
4 zoning district requires a 
minimum lot depth of 90 feet. 

Masonry Requirements for SF 
elevations Throughout No. 

Historical marker regarding the 
history of the airport and the 
Baker Family 

Pocket Park No. 

 

 

 

5 | P a g e  

 



 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

As explained in the Staff Memo, the proposed PD, which is predominantly R-4 single family 
detached homes, with a 1-acre GB tract, which can be converted to single family lots, is not in 
compliance with the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Platting Status 

Portions of the subject property were replatted in the Pearland Pavilion Addition in 1986.  
Platting will be required for the proposed development prior to the issuance of building permits 
and Certificates of Occupancy.  

Availability of Utilities 

There are existing water and sanitary sewer lines on the existing roadways, and will require 
extensions to service the lots and streets to be installed during development.  Water, sanitary 
sewer, and storm water plans are based upon land uses in the Comprehensive Plan. If this 
residential plan moves forward, the utilities will have to be reviewed and accommodated for this 
use.  Utilities and the extension of utilities will be further assessed at the time of platting. 

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

As proposed, Baker’s Landing is not in compliance with the vision of the area as a Village 
District.  The area is considered the City of Pearland’s downtown area and is envisioned to be 
developed with residential-compatible retail, office and service uses adjacent to collector 
streets, such as Galveston Avenue, Old Alvin Road and Hampshire Street.  Supporting non-
residential uses are encouraged.  If approved, Baker’s Landing may set a precedence for non-
conformance within the Village District and the Old Town site. However, with the 
recommendations in this report, it is staff’s professional opinion that this development can set 
high standards that can be replicated in other developments, and will add value to the City.  
 
Additional Comments 

The City recently executed a contract with Dannenbaum Engineering to begin working on Old 
Townsite Drainage Improvements as part of the City’s Capital Improvement Program.  The 
developer has been made aware of the project and its scope.  As the developer and City move 
forward with their projects coordination will need to take place. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent 63 public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner of the 
property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under consideration for 
the proposed PD, known as Baker’s Landing. As required by state law, a legal notice of the 
public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the 
property by the applicant.  

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

As of the date of this writing, staff has received 2 notices in opposition to the request.  However, 

6 | P a g e  

 



 

the returned notices are not from property owners within 200 feet of the site. 

Joint Workshop 

A joint workshop was held before the City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission on 
November 17, 2014.  Several concerns were expressed by the City Council and the Planning 
and Zoning Commission.  These concerns, how the applicant addressed the concerns and 
staff’s recommendations are included within the attached Staff Memo. 

Recommendation 

The recommendations are included in the attached Staff Memo. 

7 | P a g e  

 



MAIN ST

OLD ALVIN RD

E WALNUT ST

BROADWAY STE PEAR ST

3RD ST

2ND ST

RANDALL DR

KENT LN

NOTTINGHAM RD

CHURCHILL ST

WATERSIDE TRL

PROPOSED BAKER'S 
LANDING PD

AERIAL MAP

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 637 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



R-2
GCM-1

GB

PUD

OP
MF

R-1

OT-R
OT-GB

OT-MU

MAIN ST

OLD ALVIN RD

E WALNUT ST

BROADWAY STE PEAR ST

3RD ST

2ND ST

RANDALL DR

KENT LN

NOTTINGHAM RD

CHURCHILL ST

WATERSIDE TRL

2703
2701

3222

3201

3218

3412
3510

3340

3510

3401

3512

3512

3310
3421

3400

3505

3225

3326 3211

3340

2910

3208

3245

3201

3302

3322

3400

3512

3510

3419

3512 1/2

3221

2814

2601

3302

3325

3512

3304

3112

2443

2537

3307

3117

3308

2428

3408 3404

3301

3416

3209

3301

3340

3406 3402

3206

2425

3904

3291

3303

3208

3310

3010
3406

3304

3303

3404
3402

3302

3302

3302

3209

3402

3404
3408

3305

3304

3403

34053409

3412

3301

3407
3401

3403

2714

2406

3402

3401

3502

3304

3510

3207

3301

3910

3211

3212

2407

3404

3407

2409

3405
3211

3218

3210

3612

3404

2707

3306

3300

2403

3411

3302

2408
2406

3409

2716
2720

2406

2410

3211

2414

2408

3311

3410

3216

2404

2412

3405

2708

3215

2510

3312

2702

3302

3402

3916

3302

3312

3318

2411

3402

3306
4201

2403

2409

2410 2405

4202

3219

2407

2718

3313

2405

3909

3904

3316

3304

3221

3308

2408

3218

3310

3322

3213

3213

3908

3223

3306

3520

3315

2610

3210
2703

3908

4102

4102

3212

3325

4101

3214

3916

4101
3915

4101

4010

3002

4206

4202

3405
3405

2907

4104

4104

3512

4206

3414
34143410

4204

4202
4206

4203

4204

4202

4210

4208

4203

4208

4204

4205

3311

2701

4209

3403

4103

3002

42054207

3309

2905 3919

2811

4211

2803

3404

2815
2817

2703

2809

2901

3512

4209

2705

3917

2805

3921

3911

2707

3002

3111

3012

2409

3404

2407

3917

3111

3528

3911
2910

25252525
9707

2525

2510

3918

2525

2514

2525

2525

2525
25252525

3416

24112411
2406

2434

2411
2411

2438

2407

2434
2434

3702

2438

2405

2546

2420
2431
2415

2414

3801
2431

2420
2404

2501

2404

2525 2356

2501

3703

2501
2501

2404

2428
2428

2519

2408

2439

2541

38023802
3802

2541

2428

2514 2519

2527

2502

2356

2424 2434
2434

2404

2519

4101

2527

2403
2403

2541

2525

2612

2541

2525

2422

3906

2525

3325

2422
2436

3513

PROPOSED BAKER'S 
LANDING PD

ZONING MAP

GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL (GC) &

OFFICE &
PROFESSIONAL
(OP)

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 637 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



Light Industrial
Public / Semi-Public

Village District

Parks

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Retail, Offices and Services

Business Commercial

High Density Residential

MAIN ST

E WALNUT ST

E PEAR ST

3RD ST

RANDALL DR

KENT LN

NOTTINGHAM RD

CHURCHILL ST
2703 2701

3222

3201

3218

34123510

3340

3510

3401

3512

33103421

3400

3505

3225

3326

3340

2910

3208

3245

3302

3322

3400

3419

3512 1/2
3512

2814

2601

3211

3302

3325

3512

3510

3512

3304
3112

2443

2537

3307

3117

3308

2428

3408 3404

3301

3416

3209

3301

3340

3406 3402

3206

2425

3904

3291
3303

3208

3310

3406
3304

3303

3404
3402

3302

3302

3209

3402

3404
3408

3305

3304

3403

34053409

3412

3301

3407
3401

3403

2714

2406

3402

3401

3502

3304

3207

3301

3910

3211

3212

2407

3404

3407

2409

3405
3211

3218

3210

3612

3404

2707

3306

3300

2403

3411

3302

2408
2406

3409

2716
2720

2406

2410

3211

2414

2408

3311

3410

3216

2404

2412

3405

2708

3002

3215

2510

3312

3408

2702

3402

3916

3302

3312

3318

2411

3402

3306
4201

2403

2409

2410 2405

4202

3219

2407

2718

3313

2405

3904

3316

3221

2408

3218

3322

3213

3213

3908

3223

3520

3315

2610

3210
2703

3908

4102

3212

3325

4101

3214

3916

4101 3915

4101

4010

3002

4206

4202

3405
3405

4204

2907

4104

4206

3414
3414

3410
3410

4204

4202
4206

4203

4204

3402

4210
4208

4203

4208
42064204

4203

2701

4103

4205

3002

4201

2811

4211

3405

2803

3404

2815

2703

2809

3512

4209

2705

2805

3911

2707

3002
3002

2409

3404

2407

3917

3408

3528

3911
2910

25252525

4106

2510

2525

2514

2525
25252525

3416

24112411

2525

2434

2411
2411 2407

2434

2434

3702

2438

2510

2405

2420
2431
2415

2414

3801
2431

2420
2404
2404

2356

2501
3702

3703

2501 2517

2404

2428
2428

2519

2439

2409

2541

2532

3802
3802 2521

2519

2527

2502

2356

2517
2510

2424

2517

2404

2519

4101 2443
4101

2527

2420

2525

2403

2541

2406
2403

2525

2422

2612

3910

2525

2422
2436

3513

PROPOSED BAKER'S 
LANDING PD

FLUP MAP
VILLAGE DISTRICT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 637 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



Brazoria

MAIN ST

E WALNUT ST

OLD ALVIN RD

3RD ST

2ND ST

WATERSIDE TRL

2701

3222

3412
3510

3340

3310
3421

3400
2601

3340

2910

3322

3400

3510
3510

3405

3221

3310

3225

2703

2814

3519

3112

2537

3117

3408 3404

3340

3406
3402

3904

3010
3408

34063404

3404
3406

3403

3409

3412

3403

3407

3410

3401
3403

3402

3910

3404

34033405

3416

3107

2720

34113407

3916

3401

3402

2718

3909

3904

3320
3322

3908

2716

3908
3908

4102

4101

3908

3916

3915

3302

3405

2907

4104

3414
3414

3410
3410

3402

3414

4201
2701

4103

4103

3002

3311
3309

3318

3309

2905 3919

2811

3405

2803

2815
2817

2809

2813

2901
2903

3917
3917

2805
2807

3911

3916

2707
2801

30023002
3002

3111

3915
3909

39123908
3905

3012
3012

3918

3405

34043414
3414

3917

3402
3408

3911

3404

2910

9707

2510

3918

2514

2714

3401

3319

3401

2702

3702
2510

2356

2501

2501 2517
2501

2501

2519

2501

2541

3802
3802

25133802

2541

25212519

2527
2519

2356

2519
2517

2356

2517

2519
2527

3512 1/2

2527
2541

3416

2541

2612

2541

3412

25372525

BAKER'S LANDING 
PD

NOTIFICATION MAP
2014-22Z

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 500 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



2014-22Z
Property Owner List

Property Owner Address City State Zip
Alan Mueller 4201 Broadway St. Pearland TX 77581
Property Owner 3410 NOTTINGHAM ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3708 E WALNUT ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner PO BOX 2551 PEARLAND TX 77588
Property Owner 4010 VISTA RD STE B PASADENA TX 77504
Property Owner PO BOX 161653 AUSTIN TX 78716
Property Owner 2536 GRAND BLVD PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner PO BOX 127 PEARLAND TX 77588
Property Owner 3400 E WALNUT ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 5714 COTTONWOOD ST PEARLAND TX 77584
Property Owner 6001 FAIRWAY DR ALVIN TX 77511
Property Owner 2407 JOHN AVE FRIENDSWOOD TX 77546
Property Owner 3412 LOCKHEED ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 2411 PARK AVE PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 21330 TIMBER PINES DR SPRING TX 77388
Property Owner 2304 LONGWOOD DR PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 8807 LAWNCLIFF LN HOUSTON TX 77040
Property Owner 2409 LYNN DR PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 304 OAK DR FRIENDSWOOD TX 77546
Property Owner 10592 VILLA DEL CERRO SANTA ANA CA 92705
Property Owner 3411 WINDSOR ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3412 WINDSOR ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3411 HAMPSHIRE ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3412 HAMPSHIRE ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3411 WESTMINISTER ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3412 WESTMINISTER ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3411 NOTTINGHAM ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner PO BOX 693 PEARLAND TX 77588
Property Owner 3412 NOTTINGHAM ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3904 3RD ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner PO BOX 1587 PEARLAND TX 77588
Property Owner 3405 SWENSEN RD PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 450 ROSENWALD ST RESERVE LA 70084
Property Owner PO BOX 219 PEARLAND TX 77588
Property Owner PO BOX 3291 PEARLAND TX 77588
Property Owner 9503 SAGE DECK LN HOUSTON TX 77089
Property Owner 4805 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 6002 OSBORN ST HOUSTON TX 77033
Property Owner 3111 S MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3600 E WALNUT ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3506 LOCKHEED ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 5666 BELCREST ST HOUSTON TX 77033
Property Owner 1711 WOODLAND PARK DR HOUSTON TX 77077



Property Owner 2316 CUNNINGHAM DR PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 13232 MAX RD PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 10010 GIL JR LN HOUSTON TX 77075
Property Owner 3409 WARREN RD PEARLAND TX 77584
Property Owner 2708 S MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 2515 WALNUT GROVE CT PEARLAND TX 77584
Property Owner 2804 S MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3019 ELLA LEE LN HOUSTON TX 77019
Property Owner PO BOX 1028 SAN MARCOS TX 78667
Property Owner 2910 S MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner ARTEAGA NO 1 CENTRO 76000 QUERETARO MEXICO
Property Owner 1603 N MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner 3552 DOMINION RDG SAN ANGELO TX 76904
Property Owner 7223 LIBBY LN PEARLAND TX 77584
Property Owner 327 FM 2004 RD LAKE JACKSON TX 77566
Property Owner 11354 ASTORIA BLVD HOUSTON TX 77089
Property Owner 3904 3RD ST PEARLAND TX 77581
Property Owner PO BOX 2198 MEMPHIS TN 38101
Property Owner 3519 LIBERTY DR PEARLAND TX 77581



























BARRY ROSE RD

S GALVESTON AVE

S PARK AVE

S GRAND BLVD

S HOUSTON AVE

S TEXAS AVE

MALON

S WASHINGTON AVE

S SAN ANTONIO AVE

N
O

TT
IN

G
H

A
M

SU
M

M
ER 

LN

SHAKESPEARE

LO
C

K
H

EE
D

B
EE

C
H

C
R

A
FT

RA
N

D
A

LL

K
EY

ST
O

N
E 

TR
L

LE
IS

U
R

E 
LN

LOST MAPLES DR

CHURCHILL

D
U

R
A

N
G

O 
D

R

B
R

A
ZO

S 
B

EN
D 

D
R

LA
YT

O
N 

PL
A

C
E 

D
R

W
IN

D
SO

R

SHERWOOD DR

ST
RA

TF
O

RD

VETERANS DR

E 
W

A
LN

U
T 

ST

1S
T 

ST

OLD ALVIN RD

S SACRAMENTO ST

2N
D 

ST 3R
D 

ST

W
ES

TM
IN

IS
TE

R

H
A

M
PS

H
IR

E

SW
EN

SE
N 

R
D

E 
BR

O
AD

W
AY

S MAIN ST

M
-1

PU
D

G
B

M
F

G
C

G
C

G
C

R
-2

G
B

R
-2

R
-2

M
F

R
-2

G
B

M
F

G
B

G
B

G
C

G
C

G
B

G
B

G
B

O
T-

G
B

G
B

O
P

G
B

G
B

R
-2

R
-4

G
B

G
C

G
B

R
-2

R
-2

R
-4

O
P

R
-2

R
-2

M
-1

M
-1

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

R
-1

R
-1

R
-1

R
-1

G
B

M
-1

G
B

G
B

R
-1

R
-1

M
-1

G
B

R
-1

G
B

R
-2

G
C

R
-1

R
-2

M
-2

R
-2

G
C

R
-2

O
P

O
P

O
P

O
P

O
P

M
-1

M
-1

O
P

G
C

G
C

G
C

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

R

O
T-

G
B

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

R
O

T-
R

O
T-

R

T-
R -M

U

O
T-

R

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

R

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

R

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

R
O

T-
M

U
O

T-
M

U
O

T-
M

U

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

M
U

LE
G

EN
D

A
ER

IA
L 

PH
O

TO
G

R
A

PH
 D

A
TE

: M
A

R
C

H
 2

01
2

D
A

TA
 S

O
U

R
C

E
:  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

ZO
N

IN
G

 C
O

D
E

S
 A

N
D

 S
Y

M
B

O
LO

G
Y

- C
IT

Y
 O

F 
P

E
A

R
LA

N
D

TH
IS

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T 
IS

 F
O

R
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
A

L 
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 A

N
D

M
A

Y
 N

O
T 

H
A

V
E

 B
E

E
N

 P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
 O

R
 B

E
 S

U
IT

A
B

LE
 F

O
R

LE
G

A
L,

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
, O

R
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
. 

IT
 D

O
E

S
 N

O
T 

R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

T 
A

N
 O

N
-T

H
E

-G
R

O
U

N
D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

 A
N

D
R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
TS

 O
N

LY
 T

H
E

 A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
AT

E 
R

EL
A

TI
VE

 L
O

C
A

TI
O

N
 

O
F 

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

IE
S

..

D
EC

EM
B

ER
, 2

01
4

0
20

0
40

0
10

0
Fe

et

80
.4

2 
A

C
R

E
S

B
A

K
ER

S 
LA

N
D

IN
G

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 Z
O

N
IN

G

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

G
EN

ER
A

L 
B

U
SI

N
ES

S 
R

ET
A

IL
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

(G
B

)

G
EN

ER
A

L 
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
D

IS
TR

IC
T 

(G
C

)

LI
G

H
T 

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L 
D

IS
TR

IC
T 

(M
-1

)

H
EA

VY
 IN

D
U

ST
R

IA
L 

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
(M

-2
)

M
U

LT
IP

LE
-F

A
M

IL
Y 

R
ES

ID
EN

TI
A

L 
D

IS
TR

IC
T 

(M
F)

O
FF

IC
E 

A
N

D
 P

R
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
(O

P)

"
"

"

"
"

"

O
LD

 T
O

W
N

SI
TE

 G
EN

ER
A

L 
B

U
SI

N
ES

S 
D

IS
TR

IC
T 

(O
T-

G
B

)

O
LD

 T
O

W
N

SI
TE

 M
IX

ED
 U

SE
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

(O
T-

M
U

)

"
"
"
"

"
"
"
"

"
"
"
"

O
LD

 T
O

W
N

SI
TE

 S
IN

G
LE

 F
A

M
IL

Y 
D

W
EL

LI
N

G
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

(O
T-

R
)

PL
A

N
N

ED
 U

N
IT

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
(P

U
D

)

SI
N

G
LE

 F
A

M
IL

Y 
R

ES
ID

EN
TI

A
L 

1 
D

IS
TR

IC
T 

(R
-1

)

"
"

"

"
"

"

SI
N

G
LE

 F
A

M
IL

Y 
R

ES
ID

EN
TA

L 
2 

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
(R

-2
)

SI
N

G
LE

 F
A

M
IL

Y 
R

ES
ID

EN
TA

L 
4 

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
(R

-4
)





BARRY 
ROSE 

RD

S GALVESTON AVE

S PARK AVE

S GRAND BLVD

S HOUSTON AVE

S TEXAS AVE

MALON

S WASHINGTON AVE

S SAN ANTONIO AVE

S
U

M
M

E
R 

L
N

N
O

T
T

IN
G

H
A

M

R
A

N
D

A
L

L

S

HAKESPEARE

L
O

C
K

H
E

E
D

B
E

E
C

H
C

R
A

F
T

K
E

Y
S

T
O

N
E 

T
R

L

OLD ALVIN RD

L
E

IS
U

R
E 

L
N

LOST MAPLES DR

B
R

A
Z

O
S 

B
E

N
D 

D
R

W
IN

D
S

O
R

SHERWOOD DR

D
U

R
A

N
G

O 
D

R

L
A

Y
T

O
N 

P
L

A
C

E 
D

R

CHURCHIL

L

S
TR

A
TF

O
R

D

VETERANS DR

E 
W

A
L

N
U

T 
S

T

1S
T 

S
T

S SACRAMENTO ST

2N
D 

S
T 3R

D 
S

T

W
E

S
T

M
IN

IS
T

E
R

H
A

M
P

S
H

IR
E

S
W

E
N

S
E

N 
R

D

E 
B

R
O

A
D

W
AY

S MAIN 
ST

P
U

D

G
B

M
F

G
C

G
C

G
C

G
B

R
-2

G
B

M
F

G
B

G
B

G
B

G
B

O
T-

G
B

G
B

G
B

G
B

R
-2

G
B

G
C

R
-2

R
-2

O
P

M
-1

M
-1

R
-1

R
-2

R
-1

R
-1

R
-1

R
-1

G
B

M
-1

G
B

G
B

R
-1

R
-1

M
-1

G
B

R
-1

G
B

R
-2

G
C

O
P

P
U

D
O

P

O
P

M
-1

M
-1

P
U

D

G
C

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

R

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

R
O

T-
R

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

G
B

G
C

M
-1

R
-1

R
-2

P
U

D

G
C

G
CO

P
G

C

G
C

G
B

G
C

M
-2

R
-2

R
-2

R
-4

R
-4

R
-2

G
B

M
F R

-2

R
-2

R
-2

R
-2

G
C

O
T-

M
U

O
T-

R

O
T-

R

O
T-

R
O

T-
R

O
T-

R
G

C
O

T-
G

B
O

T-
M

U
O

T-
M

U
O

T-
M

U
O

T-
M

U

R
-2

G
B

L
E

G
E

N
D

A
E

R
IA

L
 P

H
O

T
O

G
R

A
P

H
 D

A
T

E
: 

M
A

R
C

H
 2

01
2

D
A

T
A

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Z

O
N

IN
G

 C
O

D
E

S
 A

N
D

 S
Y

M
B

O
LO

G
Y

- 
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 P
E

A
R

LA
N

D

T
H

IS
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

 IS
 F

O
R

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
A

L 
P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
 A

N
D

M
A

Y
 N

O
T

 H
A

V
E

 B
E

E
N

 P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
 O

R
 B

E
 S

U
IT

A
B

LE
 F

O
R

LE
G

A
L,

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
, O

R
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G
 P

U
R

P
O

S
E

S
. 

IT
 D

O
E

S
 N

O
T

 R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

T
 A

N
 O

N
-T

H
E

-G
R

O
U

N
D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

 A
N

D
R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

S
 O

N
LY

 T
H

E
 A

P
P

R
O

X
IM

A
T

E
 R

E
LA

T
IV

E
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

 
O

F
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

IE
S

.

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

, 2
01

4

0
20

0
40

0
10

0
F

ee
t

80
.4

2 
A

C
R

E
S

B
A

K
E

R
S

 L
A

N
D

IN
G

E
X

H
IB

IT
 2

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 Z
O

N
IN

G

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 R
E

TA
IL

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 (
G

B
)

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L 

D
IS

T
R

IC
T 

(G
C

)

L
IG

H
T

 IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 (
M

-1
)

H
E

A
V

Y
 IN

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L 
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 (

M
-2

)

M
U

LT
IP

L
E

-F
A

M
IL

Y
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L 

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 (
M

F
)

O
F

F
IC

E
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

L
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 (

O
P

)

O
L

D
 T

O
W

N
S

IT
E

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 (
O

T-
G

B
)

O
L

D
 T

O
W

N
S

IT
E

 M
IX

E
D

 U
S

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 (

O
T-

M
U

)

O
L

D
 T

O
W

N
S

IT
E

 S
IN

G
L

E
 F

A
M

IL
Y

 D
W

E
L

L
IN

G
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 (

O
T-

R
)

P
L

A
N

N
E

D
 U

N
IT

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 (

P
U

D
)

S
IN

G
L

E
 F

A
M

IL
Y

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 1

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 (
R

-1
)

S
IN

G
L

E
 F

A
M

IL
Y

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

TA
L 

2 
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 (

R
-2

)

S
IN

G
L

E
 F

A
M

IL
Y

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

TA
L 

4 
D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 (

R
-4

)

(R
-4

)

(R
-4

)

(R
-4

)



















































































































































 

 

 

C. Zone Change Application  

No. 2014-23Z 
 
A request of Windrose Land Services, Inc., 
applicant; on behalf of T&B Alexander Family LTD 
Partnership, owner; for approval of a change in 
zoning from the Heavy Industrial (M-2) zoning 
district to the General Commercial (GC) zoning 
district, on approximately 9.9 acres of land. 



 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL CITY AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, JANUARY 5, 2015, AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Zone Change Application No. 2014-23Z 
 
A request of Windrose Land Services, Inc., applicant; on behalf of T&B 
Alexander Family LTD Partnership, owner; for approval of a change in zoning 
from the Heavy Industrial (M-2) zoning district to the General Commercial (GC) 
zoning district, on approximately 9.9 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Tract 1:  Tract or parcel containing 4.2066 acres or 183,242 
square feet of land situated in the A.C.H. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 507, 
Brazoria County, Texas, being out of a called14.02 acre tract of land conveyed to 
T. & B. Alexander  Family, LTD, Partnership as recorded under Brazoria County 
Clerks File No. 98- 053938, same being out of Lot 19 of the L.W. Murdock 
Subdivision, map or plat thereof recorded under Volume 29, Page 174 of the 
Brazoria County Deed Records 
 
Tract 2:  A tract or parcel containing 5.7495 acres or 250,450 square feet of land 
situated in the A.C.H. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract No. 507, Brazoria County, 
Texas, being out of a called14.02 acre tract of land conveyed to T. & B. 
Alexander Family, LTD, Partnership as recorded under Brazoria County Clerks 
File No. 98-053938, same being out of Lot 19 of the L.W. Murdock Subdivision, 
map or plat thereof recorded under Volume 29, Page 174 of the Brazoria County 
Deed  Records. 
 
General Location:  Northwest and southwest corners of Main Street and Bailey 
Road, Pearland, TX 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 
A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
 

Page 1 of 2 – 1/5/2015    
 



IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 
REQUEST 

 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 

 



 

 

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  January 5, 2015 
 
Re: Zone Change Application Number 2014-23Z 

A request of Windrose Land Services, Inc., applicant; on behalf 
of T&B Alexander Family LTD Partnership, owner; for approval 
of a change in zoning from the Heavy Industrial (M-2) zoning 
district to the General Commercial (GC) zoning district, on 
approximately 9.9 acres of land located on the northwest and 
southwest corners of Main Street and Bailey Road, Pearland, 
TX 

 

Proposal 

The subject property includes approximately 9.9 acres of land, of which the applicant is 
requesting a change in zoning from the Heavy Industrial (M-2) zoning district to the 
General Commercial (GC) zoning district.  According to the applicant’s letter of intent, 
the purpose of the requested change in zoning is to develop the southwest corner of the 
property into a new gas station and convenience store.   

The property was split due to the construction of Bailey Road in 2006. The owner of the 
property entered into a settlement with the City due to the land split.  One of the terms 
of the agreement was that staff “will use their best efforts to zone the property General 
Commercial,” as defined in the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC).  The proposed 
zone change is in conformance with the aforementioned settlement agreement. All 
requirements of the UDC are required to be met upon development of the site.  

Public Notification/Comment 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, owner of 
the property, and to property owners within 200 feet of the site.  Additionally, a legal 
notice of the public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification 
sign was placed on the property by the applicant. 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any returned notices from property 
owners within 200 feet of the site. 

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the request to change the zoning of the approximately 
9.9 acre site from M-2 to GC for the following reasons: 

1. The change in zoning will result in conformance with the approved settlement 
agreement signed by the City in April 2006 stating that staff will use their best 
efforts to zone the property General Commercial. The proposed zoning of GC on 
the subject property is not in conformance with the future land use designation of 
the Comprehensive Plan which is “Light Industrial.”   A commercial node is not 
designated at this location due to an existing commercial node, north of this site 
at the intersection of Magnolia and SH 35.  Additionally, there is land zoned for 
commercial on the east side of this intersection.  Therefore, staff does not 
recommend any additional zoning of land to commercial, in order to preserve 
manufacturing zoned land that has future potential to create jobs and add value 
to the City, as recommended by the Comprehensive Plan.   

2. It is not anticipated that the proposed change in zoning will have significant 
negative impacts on surrounding properties or developments.   

3. All requirements of the UDC will be met upon development of the property. 

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report 

2. Aerial Map 

3. Zoning Map 

4. Future Land Use Map 

5. Notification Map 

6. Notification List 

7. Applicant Packet 

2 | P a g e  

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of Request 

The subject property includes approximately 9.9 acres of land, of which the applicant is 
requesting a change in zoning from the Heavy Industrial (M-2) zoning district to the 
General Commercial (GC) zoning district.  According to the applicant’s letter of intent, 
the purpose of the requested change in zoning is to develop the southwest corner of the 
property into a Gas Station and Convenience Store.  All requirements of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) will be met upon development of the site.  

Site History 

The subject property is currently undeveloped. The property was split due to the 
construction of Bailey Road in 2006. The owner of the property entered into a 
settlement with the City due to the land split.  One of the terms of the agreement was 
that staff will use their best efforts to zone the property General Commercial (GC).  The 
proposed zone change is in conformance with the aforementioned agreement.  

The site is surrounded by non-residential uses and non-residential zoning districts. The 
below table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts: 

 Zoning Land Use 
North Heavy Industrial (M-2) Undeveloped Industrial 

Property 
South Heavy Industrial (M-2) Undeveloped Industrial 

Property 
East General Commercial (GC) Undeveloped Commercial 

Property/Pearland High 
School 

West Heavy Industrial (M-2) Undeveloped Industrial 
Property 

 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The subject property has approximately 725 feet of frontage along Main Street and 858 
feet of frontage along Bailey Road; both of which are major thoroughfares, which 
require 120 feet of right-of-way.  It appears from GIS records that the existing right-of-
way at this location, is approximately 120 feet; and therefore is in compliance with the 
thoroughfare plan.  However, right-of-way dedication will be analyzed at the time of 
platting. 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The property is currently undeveloped. The applicant has plans to develop a portion of 
the property with a Gas Station and a Convenience Store.  Both uses are permitted 
within the proposed GC zoning district.  If approved, any subdivision of the property in 
the future will be required to conform to the GC standards.  The GC requirements can 
be found in the provided table below.  All other requirements of the UDC, including the 
Corridor Overlay District (COD) standards along Bailey Road and Main Street, will be 
required to be met.  

General Commercial (GC) Area Regulations 

Size of Lot Required 

Minimum Lot Size 22,500 sf. 

Minimum Lot Width 150 ft. 

Minimum Lot Depth 125 ft. 

 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

The proposed zoning of GC on the subject property is not in conformance with the 
future land use designation of the Comprehensive Plan which is “Light Industrial.”   A 
commercial node is not designated at this location due to an existing commercial node, 
north of this site at the intersection of Magnolia and SH 35.  Additionally, there is land 
zoned for commercial on the east side of this intersection.  Therefore, staff does not 
recommend any additional zoning of land to commercial, in order to preserve 
manufacturing zoned land that has future potential to create jobs and add value to the 
City, as recommended by the Comprehensive Plan.  However, this proposed zoning of 
GC is in conformance with the 2006 signed agreement between the City and the 
property owner.  

 

2 | P a g e  

 



 

Platting Status 

The property has not been platted.  A plat will be required prior to the issuance of any 
building permits for the site. 

 

 

Availability of Utilities 

The subject property has access to public infrastructure.   GIS data indicates that water 
is available to the site via a 16-inch waterline along the west side of Main Street and a 
24-inch water line along the north side of Bailey Road.  Additionally, there is an existing 
30-inch sewer line along the eastern side of Main Street and a 12-inch sewer line along 
the south side of Bailey Road.  Any extension of public infrastructure that may be 
required will be extended by the developer and will be assessed during the platting 
process. 

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

The GC zone is not anticipated to have a significant negative impact on future 
developments in the area.  The surrounding area is zoned for either commercial or 
industrial uses.  However, Staff has the following concerns:  

1. Traffic impact on surrounding area. 

a. A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) will be required at the time of platting 
to ensure all measures are taken to mitigate the impact of additional 
traffic on Main Street and Bailey Road. 

2. Setting precedence for future rezoning in the area from M-2 to GC.  

a. It is important for the city to protect as much property as possible that 
is currently zoned Industrial (M-1/M-2).  In this case, the City has 
previously agreed to make their best effort to rezone the property in 
question as General Commercial.  Staff’s recommendation would be 
to not allow this individual case to set precedence for future zoning 
cases in the area that would result in the loss of additional industrial 
land.  

Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the City’s Development Review Committee (DRC), 
and there were no additional comments from other departments at the time of this 
report. 

3 | P a g e  

 



 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property, and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the zone change.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

At the time of this writing, Staff has not received any comments either in opposition to or 
in support of the proposed change in zoning request at this time.   

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the request to change the zoning of the approximately 
9.9 acre site from M-2 to GC for the following reasons: 

1. The change in zoning will result in conformance with the approved settlement 
agreement signed by the City in April 2006 stating that staff will use their best 
efforts to zone the property General Commercial. The proposed zoning of GC on 
the subject property is not in conformance with the future land use designation of 
the Comprehensive Plan which is “Light Industrial.”   A commercial node is not 
designated at this location due to an existing commercial node, north of this site 
at the intersection of Magnolia and SH 35.  Additionally, there is land zoned for 
commercial on the east side of this intersection.  Therefore, staff does not 
recommend any additional zoning of land to commercial, in order to preserve 
manufacturing zoned land that has future potential to create jobs and add value 
to the City, as recommended by the Comprehensive Plan.   

2. It is not anticipated that the proposed change in zoning will have significant 
negative impacts on surrounding properties or developments.   

3. All requirements of the UDC will be met upon development of the property. 

 

4 | P a g e  

 



MAIN ST

BAILEY RD

OILER DR

CANYON LAKE DR
VILLAGE DR

AERIAL MAP

Zone Change 2014-23Z

West Corner of
Bailey and Main St. 

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 471 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

Exhibit 2



M-2

R-2
GC

M-1
PUD

R-1

MAIN ST

BAILEY RD

OILER DR

CANYON LAKE DR

ZONING MAP

Zone Change 2014-23Z

West Corner of
Bailey and Main St. 

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 471 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

Exhibit 3



Light Industrial

Public / Semi-Public

Business Commercial
Medium Density Residential

Low Density Residential

MAIN ST

BAILEY RD

OILER DR

VILLAGE DR

FLUP MAP

Zone Change 2014-23Z

West Corner of
Bailey and Main St. 

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 471 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

Exhibit 4



MAIN ST

BAILEY RD

OILER DR

CANYON LAKE DR
VILLAGE DR

NOTIFICATION MAP

Zone Change 2014-23Z

West Corner of
Bailey and Main St. 

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 471 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

Exhibit 5



Owner Address City State Zip
JM PROJECTS, LLC PO BOX 2024 FRIENDSWOOD TX 77549
RYAN STEVEN 3714 OAK DALE DR PEARLAND TX 77581
BURNS RICHARD J PO BOX 459 PEARLAND TX 77588
ALEXANDER FAMILY 2411 PARK AVE PEARLAND TX 77581
PEARLAND ISD PO BOX 7 PEARLAND TX 77588
TOWNE LAKE, LP 7918 BROADWAY ST STE 106 PEARLAND TX 77581



































 

 

 

D. Unified Development Code 
Text Amendment 
 
A request of the City of Pearland Community 
Development Department; for approval of a 
Unified Development Code (UDC) amendment to 
add Micro-Breweries/ Micro-Distillery/Micro- 
Winery, and Coffee Roasting, to Section 2.5.1.1 
(c); the land use matrix of the UDC; and to replace 
Section 4.2.2.5 (g) of the UDC to update the plant 
list. 



 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL CITY AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, JANUARY 5, 2015, AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Unified Development Code (UDC) Amendment 
 
A request of the City of Pearland Community Development Department; for 
approval of a Unified Development Code (UDC) amendment to add Micro-
Breweries/ Micro-Distillery/Micro- Winery, and Coffee Roasting, to Section 2.5.1.1 
(c); the land use matrix of the UDC; and to replace Section 4.2.2.5 (g) of the UDC 
to update the plant list. 
 
Legal Description:  N/A 
 
General Location:  N/A 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 
A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 

 

Page 1 of 1 – 1/5/2015 
 



 

` 

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  December 17, 2014 
 
Re: Proposed Amendments to the Unified Development Code
 regarding Micro-Breweries/ Micro-Distillery, Micro-Winery, 

and Coffee Roasting; and Plant List 

Micro-Breweries/ Micro-Distillery, Micro-Winery, and Coffee Roasting: 

Reason for the amendment: 

The Unified Development Code currently permits breweries and wineries only in M-2 
zone, as a “Beverage Plant”, under the land use category of Manufacturing, Industrial 
Storage, or Assembly Process, as shown in the matrix below.   

 

The City has been approached by a number of businesses interested in locating smaller 
microbreweries/wineries in the city that are less intense and are often located in 
commercial and retail areas.  These microbreweries/wineries have a restaurant/ retail 
/tasting room component.  An example is the recently approved Planned Development 
(PD) for BAKS microbrewery (6,000 square feet) on Broadway that includes a beer 
tasting room, and is located in a commercial zone.  The purpose of this amendment is 
to permit these uses in non-residential zones with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP).  A 
CUP, that requires notification to abutting property owners within 200 feet and a public 
hearing, will provide an opportunity for the City Council and Planning and Zoning 
Commission to review individual requests for appropriateness and compatibility with 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

respect to surrounding uses, and provide an opportunity to address neighbors’ 
concerns. 

Proposed Amendment: 

1. The category of Micro-Breweries/ Micro-Distillery, Micro-Winery, and Coffee 
Roasting will be added to the land use matrix, with the following description:  

Micro-Breweries/ Micro-Distillery/Micro-Winery is a facility in which beer, wine, or 
other alcoholic beverages are brewed, fermented, or distilled for distribution and 
consumption, and which possess the appropriate licenses from the state of 
Texas.  These are typically much smaller establishments and are independently 
owned.  

Coffee Roasting is a facility in which unprocessed, green, coffee may be sorted, 
roasted and processed, or packaged for use and consumption. 

2. Micro-Breweries/ Micro-Distillery, Micro-Winery, and Coffee Roasting will meet 
the following conditions: 

a. Maximum size of the facility and all associated uses shall be 15,000 square 
foot 

b. The establishment will include at least one of the following uses, associated 
with the facility, and located in the same building: a restaurant, tasting room, 
bar, or lounge, that shall meet the following conditions: 

1. All prescribed conditions associated with the retail, restaurant, tasting 
room, bar, or lounge use shall be met, including separation distances 
and buffers. 

2. The minimum size of the associated retail, restaurant, bar, tasting 
room, or lounge shall be 10% of the total square footage for the facility 
and all associated uses, or 1,000 square feet, whichever is less. 

3. All Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) regulations will 
apply. 

3. This use will be permitted with a CUP in the following zoning district: 

C-MU   Cullen Mixed Use 

G/O MU Garden/Oday Mixed Use 

OT-GB Old Townsite General Business 

OT-MU Old Townsite Mixed Use 

GB  General Business 

GC  General Commercial  

2 | P a g e  

 



 

M-1  Light Industrial 

M-2  Heavy Industrial  

Amendments to the Plant List 

 

Reason for the amendment: 

The 20/20 Pearland Strategic Plan called for the City to adopt uniform standards for the 
maintenance of our landscaped roads and corridors.    As part of our evaluation of 
existing standards and the development of the new standards, which were implemented 
with the City’s new landscape maintenance contract in the spring of 2014, the City 
evaluated the species list for both City projects and that included in the UDC.     At that 
time it was recognized by our landscape architects that a few of the species in the list 
were not appropriate for our climate or soil conditions and should be removed, 
especially in terms of long term maintenance and sustainability.     

 
U
s
e 

 
Residential Zoning Districts 

 
Mixed Use Districts 

 
Old 
Town 

Non-Residential 
Zoning 

D

 

 
 

Micro-
Breweries/ 

Micro-
Distillery, 

Micro-Winery, 
and Coffee 
Roasting 

SD
 

R
-E

 
SR

-1
5 

SR
-1

2 

R
-1

 
R

-2
 

R
-3

 
R

-4
 

TH
 

M
F 

M
H

 

S
P
D 

C
-M

U
 

G
/O

- M
U

 
O

T-
R

 

O
T-

G
B

 
O

T-
M

U
 

 
R

R
N

 

O
P 

B
P-

28
8 

N
S 

G
B

 
G

C
 

 
M

-1
 

M
-2

 

S1
 

S2
 

S3
 

S4
 

S5
 

                C C  C C     C C C C 
Description:  Micro-Breweries/ Micro-Distillery/Micro-Winery is a facility in which beer, wine, or other 
alcoholic beverages are brewed, fermented, or distilled for distribution and consumption, and which 
possess the appropriate licenses from the state of Texas.  These are much smaller than large-scale 
corporate establishments and are independently owned.  

4. Coffee Roasting is a facility in which unprocessed, green, coffee may be sorted, roasted and 
processed, or packaged for use and consumption. Micro-Breweries/ Micro-Distillery, Micro-
Winery, and Coffee Roasting will meet the following conditions: 

c. Maximum size of the facility and all associated uses shall be 15,000 square foot 
d. The establishment will include at least one of the following uses, associated with the facility, 

and located in the same building: a retail, restaurant, tasting room, bar, or lounge, that shall 
meet the following conditions: 

1. All prescribed conditions associated with the retail, restaurant, tasting room, bar, or 
lounge use shall be met, including separation distances and buffers. 

2. The minimum size of the associated retail, restaurant, bar, tasting room, or lounge 
shall be 10% of the total square footage for the facility and all associated uses, or 
1,000 square feet, whichever is less. 

3. All Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) regulations will apply. 

 

 

Parking: One space for each 1.5 employees in the maximum work shift for the manufacturing area. 
Four spaces, plus one space for each 100 square feet of gross floor area, or one space per four seats, 
whichever is less, for associated restaurant, bar, tasting room, or lounge. 
One space for 200 square feet of gross floor area for retail 
 

 

3 | P a g e  

 



 

 

It is important that the City have a list to ensure appropriate plant species, since many 
of the professionals that design projects in our community are not from the community 
and may not be familiar with our climate or soils and many smaller developments do not 
employ a landscape architect,.    The Unified Development Code (adopted in 2006) and 
the Land Use and Urban Development Code (adopted in 1999), have included a plant 
list for required planting and tree mitigation.  This list was recently updated in 2010 to 
add species that were considered native and indigenous to the state.   

The City of Pearland has been working with Clark Condon Associates to identify a list of 
plantings that are generally well adapted to the Pearland area, incur low long-term 
maintenance costs, and are drought tolerance, if used with consideration to the proper 
horticultural requirements. The purpose of this amendment is to replace the current list 
in the UDC with the list prepared by Clark Condon Associates.  This amendment will 
ensure that the private investment in plantings is sustainable and effective, by 
recommending species that are best adapted to the Pearland climate and soil 
conditions.  This list is not meant to be restrictive but is meant to be a design tool for 
residents and professionals doing work in Pearland.  

Summary of Changes to the 
Planting List     

Type 

Number of Species 
Currently 
Permitted 

Number of 
Species Proposed 

Ground Covers (Wildflowers/Ferns) 13 40 
Native/ Prairie Grasses 0 7 
Vines 7 9 
Perennials  45 45 
Shrubs  20 22 
Trees 28 30 
Palms (Ornamental) 0 9 
Ornamental Grasses 0 4 
Cacti/Yucca 0 5 

 

The list of species recommend for City projects is also included in this report and is 
more restrictive.  That list will be included in the design criteria for City projects. 

 

 

 

4 | P a g e  

 



 

 

Proposed Amendments: 

1.  Replace Section 4.2.2.5 (g) with the new list.           

             

 

 

5 | P a g e  

 



 

 

 

6 | P a g e  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
7 | P a g e  

 



 

 

Proposed List:  

 

 

8 | P a g e  

 



 

    

9 | P a g e  

 



 

 

 

10 | P a g e  

 



 

 

 

11 | P a g e  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
12 | P a g e  

 



 

2. Replace Section 4.2.3.9 (e) with the new list. 

Section 4.2.3.9 (e) 

 

 

13 | P a g e  

 



 

 

 

 

14 | P a g e  

 



 

City of Pearland Plant List Recommended for City Projects 
 

Trees 
Common Name Scientific Name 

American Holly Ilex opaca 
Bald Cypress Taxodium Distichum 
Cedar Elm Ulums crassifolia 
Chinese Fringe Chionanthus spp 
Chinkapin (Chinquapin) Oak Quercus muehlenbergii 
Common Crepemytle Lagerstroemia indica, Lagerstroemia x fauriei 
Lacebark Elm Ulmus parvifolia 
Live Oak Quercus virginana 
Mexican Sycamore Platanus mexicana 
Mexican White Oak (Monterrey Oak) Quercus polymorpha 
Montezuma Bald Cypress Taxodium mucronatum 
Possumhaw Holly Ilex decidua 
Retama Parkinsonia aculeate 
Southern Magnolia Magnolia grandiflora 
Water Oak Quercus nigra 
Willow Oak Quercus phellos 
Yaupon Holly Ilex vomintoria 

 
Palms 

Common Name Scientific Name 
Date Palm Phoenix dactylifera 
Mexican Fan Palm Washingtonia robusta 
Sago Palm Cycas revoluta 
Texas Sabal Palm Sabal texana 

 
Shrubs 

Common Name Scientific Name 
Common Oleander Nerium oleander 
Coppertone Loquat Eriobotrya japonica ‘Coppertone’ 
Coppertone Loquat Eriobotrya japonica ‘Coppertone’ 
Dwarf Crepemyrtle Lagerstroemia indica dwarf cv. 
Dwarf Oleander Nerium oleander 'dwarf' 
Dwarf Yaupon Holly Ilex vomitoria 'dwarf' 
Earthkind Rose Varieties Rosa sp. (Earthkind) 
Flame Acanthus Anisacanthus quadrifidus var. 
Indian Hawthorn 'Clara' Raphiolepis indica 'clara' 
Orange Zexmenia Wedelia hispida 
Prostrate Juniper Juniperus prostrata 
Southern Waxmyrtle Myrica cerifera 
Texas Sage Leucophyllum spp. 
Turk's Cap Malvaviscus drummondii 

 
 
 
 
 
 

15 | P a g e  

 



 

Perennials 
Common Name Scientific Name 

Bicolor Iris Dietes bicolor 
Blue Plumbago Plumbago auriculata 
Butterfly Iris Dietes vegata 
Canna sp. Canna x generalis 
Evergreen Daylily Hemerocallis sp. 
Firecracker Plant Russelia equisetiformis 
Lantana sp. Lantana spp. 
Louisiana Iris Iris sp. 
Mexican Heather Cuphea hyssopifolia 
Orange zexmania Wedelia hispida 
Prostrate Rosemary Rosmarinus officianalis 'prostrata' 
Purple Heart Setcreasea pallida 
Variegated Ginger Alpinia zerumbet ‘Variegata’ 

 
Groundcovers & Ferns 

Common Name Scientific Name 
Asian Jasmine Trachelospermum asiaticum 
Bigblue Liriope L. muscari - 'Bigblue' 
Creeping Daisy Wedelia trilobata 
Liriope Liriope sp. 
Ophiopogon japonica Monkey grass 
Prostrate Juniper Juniperus prostrata 
Sword fern Polystichum munitum 
Trailing Lantana Lantana montevidenisis 

 
Grasses 

Common Name Scientific Name 
Fountain Grass Miscanthus sinensis 
Gulf Coast Muhly Muhlenbergia capillaris 
Lindheimer Muhly Muhlenbergia lindheimeri 
Purple Fountain Grass Pennisetum scatceium 'Rubrum' 

 
Vines 

Common Name Scientific Name 
Cape Honeysuckle Tecomaria capensis 
Carolina Jessamine Gelsemium sempervirens 
Coral Honeysuckle Lonicera sempervirens 
Chinese Starjasmine Trachelospermum jasminoides 

 
Cacti & Succulents 

Common Name Scientific Name 
Agave Americana Century Plant 
Dasylirion texanum Texas sotol 
Dasylirion wheeleri Gray sotol 
Red Yucca Hesperaloe parviflora 
Spineless prickly pear Opuntia ellisiana 

 

16 | P a g e  

 



 

 

 

E. Discussion Items 
 

1. Commissioners Activity Report 
 

2. Comprehensive Plan Update 
 

3. Letter from applicant regarding Planning and 
Zoning Variance 2014-06 and staff memo 

 
4. Next P&Z Meeting, February 2, 2015 – Regular 

Meeting  
 



 

   Memo     

To:        Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:    Johnna Matthews, City Planner 

Date:     December 31, 2014 

Re:        Response to letter from R. West Development 

 
A letter was received by the Planning Department from Ms. McGuire of R West 
Development on November 21, 2014 regarding Planning and Zoning Variance 2014-06.   
 
The request was to allow for 3 additional lots in an existing subdivision which currently 
consists of 59 lots with only one point of ingress and egress.  Pursuant to Section 
3.2.6.2 (d) of the Unified Development Code (UDC), at 60 or more lots, a subdivision 
must have at minimum 2 points of ingress and egress.  Finding no cause for approval, 
the Planning and Zoning Variance request was denied.   
 
Attached is the original letter sent by Ms. McGuire, followed by a response from Roland 
Garcia, Fire Marshal.   
 
 
 
     
     
 
 
 
 
 







 

 

 

IV. Adjournment 
 

 


	P&Z Agenda Coversheet
	January 5, 2015 P&Z Agenda
	CONSENT AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA ITEM A
	December 15, 2014 P&Z MInutes
	NEW BUSINESS
	NEW BUSINESS ITEM A
	CUP 2014-10, iShine Auto Wash
	1.  CUP 2014-10 JPH
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. CUP 2014-10, Memo
	3. CUP 2014-10, Staff Report
	4. Aerial Map
	5. Zoning Map
	6. FLUP Map
	7. Notification Map
	8. Notification List
	Sheet1

	9. Site Pan & Elevations
	10.  Application Packet

	NEW BUSINESS ITEM B
	2014-22Z, Baker's Landing
	1. 2014-22Z, AIS 1.5.15 JPH
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. 2014-22Z, Staff Memo
	3. 2014-22Z, Staff Report
	4. Aerial Map
	5. Zoning Map
	7. FLUP Map
	8. Notification Map
	9. Notification List
	Sheet1

	10. Bakers Landing PD Document
	11.  Application Packet

	NEW BUSINESS ITEM C
	2014-23Z, Main and Bailey
	1. 2014-23Z, AIS 01.05.15 JPH
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. 2014-23Z, JPH Memo
	3. 2014-23Z,  JPH Staff Report
	4. 2014-23Z, Aerial Map
	5. 2014-23Z, Zoning Map
	6. 2014-23Z, FLUP Map
	7. 2014-23Z, Notification Map
	8. Notification List
	Results (5)

	9. 2014-23Z Application Packet

	NEW BUSINESS ITEM D
	UDC Text Amendment
	1.  UDC Text Amendment 1.5.15 JPH
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. Memo UDC Amendments - Micro Breweries and Plant List - Staff Memo

	NEW BUSINESS ITEM E
	RWest Memo
	Rene West letter
	Roland Response
	Adjournment

